Illinois Coastal Management Program

Section 309 Assessment and Strategy 2016-2020

Prepared by:



Illinois Coastal Management Program 160 N. LaSalle, S-703 Chicago IL 60601

May 28, 2015

Table of Contents

Introduction	1
Summary of Recent Section 309 Activities	
Stakeholder Input	
Phase I Assessments	,
Wetlands	
Coastal Hazards	11
Public Access	
Marine Debris	19
Cumulative and Secondary Impacts	22
Special Area Management Plans	26
Great Lakes Resources	29
Energy and Government Facility Siting	33
Aquaculture	36
Phase II Assessments	29
Coastal Hazards	
Public Access	43
Energy and Government Facility Siting	47
Strategies for Priority Enhancement Areas	51
Coastal Hazards - Shoreline Erosion and Accretion	
Coastal Hazards - Ravine Management Program	59
Coastal Hazards - Prioritizing Wetlands	64
Coastal Hazards - Groundwater Hydrology	
Public Access Plan - Inventory and Needs Assessment	

Appendix A – Public Comments and ICMP Responses

Introduction

The U.S. Congress passed the Coastal Zone Management Act (CZMA) in 1972. The goal of the Act is to preserve, protect, develop, and where possible, to restore or enhance the resources of the nation's coastal zone. This Act, administered by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), provides for the management of the nation's coastal resources, including the Great Lakes.

The CZMA outlines the National Coastal Zone Management Program (NCZMP), which comprehensively addresses the nation's coastal issues through a voluntary partnership between the federal government and coastal and Great Lakes states and territories. There are 34 coastal states and island territories that participate in the National Coastal Zone Management Program. The NCZMP outlines basic requirements that the states must follow and gives states the flexibility to design unique programs that best address their coastal challenges and regulations. The program provides the basis for protecting, restoring, and responsibly developing our nation's diverse coastal communities and resources and by leveraging both federal and state expertise and resources, the program strengthens the capabilities of each to address coastal issues.

The State of Illinois joined the NCZMP on January 31, 2012, establishing the Illinois Coastal Management Program (ICMP). The Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) is the lead agency administering the ICMP and coordinating with a network of other state agencies to ensure program compliance.

Section 309 Process

Section 309 of the CZMA established a voluntary program to encourage states and territories to strengthen and improve their federally approved coastal management programs in one or more of nine areas. These "enhancement areas" include:

- Wetlands
- Coastal hazards
- Public access
- Marine debris
- Cumulative and secondary impacts
- Special area management plans
- Great Lakes resources
- Energy and government facility siting
- Aquaculture

Every five years, states and territories are encouraged to conduct self-assessments of their coastal management programs (Section 309 assessment) to determine problems and opportunities within each of the nine enhancement areas. Assessment and strategy development follows a process outlined in NOAA's guidance document, Coastal Zone Management Act, Section 309 Program Guidance, 2016 to 2020 Enhancement Cycle. Submittal of a comprehensive Section 309 plan and approval of the plan by

NOAA will make ICMP eligible to receive Section 309 funds to implement strategies for the 2016-2020 fiscal years.

The Section 309 process requires that all strategies lead to a program change. A program change is a change to a state's or territory's federally-approved coastal management program. Defined in 15 CFR 923.123, program changes include the following:

- A change to coastal zone boundaries that will improve a state's ability to achieve one or more of the enhancement objectives.
- New or revised authorities, including statutes, regulations, enforceable policies, administrative decisions, executive orders, and memoranda of agreement or understanding, that will improve a state's ability to achieve one or more of the enhancement objectives.
- New or revised local coastal programs and implementing ordinances that will improve a state's ability to achieve one or more of the enhancement objectives.
- New or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs that improve a state's ability to attain one or more of the enhancement objectives.
- New or revised special area management plans or plans for areas of particular concern (APC), including enforceable policies and other necessary implementing mechanisms or criteria and procedures for designating and managing APCs that will improve a state's ability to achieve one or more of the enhancement objectives.
- New or revised guidelines, procedures, and policy documents that are formally adopted by a state
 and provide specific interpretations of enforceable coastal policies to applicants, local
 governments, and other agencies that will result in meaningful improvements in coastal resource
 management and that will improve a state's ability to attain one or more of the enhancement
 objectives.

The following actions are not considered to be program changes:

- Increased staffing or staff reassignments that will not support or result in a program change as defined above.
- Administrative or organizational changes that do not change or improve the state's coastal management program.
- Educational and outreach materials that are not part of a larger strategy to achieve a program change as defined above.
- Research or mapping efforts that are not part of a larger strategy to achieve a program change as
 defined above.

- Participation in coordination groups that are not part of a larger strategy to achieve a program change as defined above.
- Technical or financial assistance to local governments that is not part of a focused strategy to develop new or revised local coastal programs or implementing ordinances to achieve a specified enhancement objective.
- Actual land acquisition or low-cost construction projects.

Section 309 assessment process is broken down into a high-level Phase I evaluation performed for all nine enhancement areas, and an in-depth Phase II assessment and strategy development performed for high priority areas identified through the Phase I process. The Phase I and Phase II assessment was completed by the ICMP staff using templates and resources provided by NOAA. Key stakeholder input and ICMP knowledge of the issue are also reflected in the assessment. Where feasible, ICMP attempted to analyze data for the resources located within the Coastal Zone boundary. If that level of detail was not available, data was analyzed at the county level (Cook and Lake Counties) and the extent of analysis has been noted in the assessment tables.

As part of the Phase I assessment, ICMP assigned a priority level to the nine enhancement areas as presented in the below table. Enhancement areas ranked as "High Priority" were then further assessed during the Phase II evaluation process. Following the Phase II assessment, ICMP developed strategies to address high priority issues identified in the assessments.

Enhancement Area	Phase I Priority
Wetlands	Medium
Coastal hazards	High
Public access	High
Marine debris	Medium
Cumulative and secondary impacts	Medium
Special area management plans	Medium
Great Lakes resources	Medium
Energy and government facility siting	High
Aquaculture	Low

This is the first time that ICMP is performing a Section 309 assessment. Questions related to changes since the last assessment are not applicable to ICMP and have been noted as such. However, ICMP staff did request a legal review of changes that occurred in the past three years to statutes, regulations, and programs for the management characterization section of each enhancement area. This was done to gain a better understanding of the changes to programs and regulations that could affect ICMP in the future. Notable changes are indicated on each enhancement area template.

Summary of Recent Section 309 Activities

This is the first Section 309 strategy and assessment performed by ICMP. As such, there are no previous Section 309 activities to summarize.

Stakeholder Input

ICMP organized two stakeholder meetings in order to gather input on Phase I priorities. The first meeting took place on October 31, 2014 and engaged members of the ICMP's Technical Advisory Group (TAC). Participants included:

- Tom Heavisides, IDNR Office of Land Management
- Nancy Holm, Illinois Sustainable Technology Center
- Dan Injerd, IDNR Office of Water Resources
- Geoff Levin, Illinois Natural History Survey
- Chris Rollins, IDNR Office of Land Management
- Vic Santucci, IDNR Office of Resource Conservation
- Amy Walkenbach, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

The second meeting was held on November 3, 2014 with ICMP's Coastal Advisory Group (CAG). Participants included:

- Joel Brammeier, Alliance for the Great Lakes
- Pat Dipersio, Village of Winthrop Harbor
- Bob Dornicker, Evanston Park & Recreation District
- Carrie Haberstich, Village of Skokie
- Angela Larsen, Lake Michigan Ecosystem Partnership
- Tim Loftus, Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning
- Debbie Maurer, Lake County Forest Preserve District
- Joe McRae, Evanston Park & Recreation District
- Mike Prusila, Lake County Stormwater Management Commission
- Ernest Roberts, Robinson Engineering, Calumet City
- Steve Saunders, Village of Winnetka
- Joseph Schuessler, Metropolitan Water Reclamation District
- Chris Stachewicz, Village of Lincolnwood
- Rick Stumpf, Park District of Highland Park
- Michelle Uting, Forest Preserves of Cook County

During these meetings, ICMP shared their preliminary Phase I analysis with TAC and CAG members and solicited input on the issues and preliminary ranking of enhancement areas. Input from TAC and CAG members was very beneficial for determining final priority levels and has been incorporated into the assessment. A summary of stakeholder input is provided for each enhancement area as part of Phase I templates. ICMP solicited further input from other IDNR divisions as well as other agencies to aid in Phase II analysis and to develop strategies.

As part of the process, the draft document was made available for public comments from February 25, 2015 to April 30, 2015. The draft document was posted on the ICMP website and an email announcing the public comment period was sent out to ICMP stakeholder list. The document was also discussed during a Waukegan Harbor Citizens' Advisory Group meeting on April 16, 2015, and a summary of comments from CAG members was submitted to ICMP. Appendix A contains comments received during the public comment period and indicates ICMP's response/matter of addressing the comments.

Phase I Assessments

Wetlands

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Protection, restoration, or enhancement of the existing coastal wetlands base, or creation of new coastal wetlands. §309(a)(1)

Note: For the purposes of the Wetlands Assessment, wetlands are "those areas that are inundated or saturated at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions." [33 CFR 328.3(b)]. See also pg. 17 of the CZMA Performance Measurement Guidance³ for a more indepth discussion of what should be considered a wetland.

Resource Characterization:

1. Using provided reports from NOAA's Land Cover Atlas or high-resolution C-CAP data (Pacific and Caribbean Islands only), please indicate the extent, status, and trends of wetlands in the state's coastal counties. You can provide additional or alternative information or use graphs or other visual to help illustrate or replace the table entirely if better data are available.

Coastal Wetlands Status and Trends in the Coastal Zone					
Total acresTotal acresTotal acresTotal acresChangeChangeWetlands2001200620112001-20112006-2011					
Emergent herbaceous	2,658.29	2,796.17	2,853.11	7.33 %	2.04 %
Woody	2,180.81	1,995.55	1,967.31	-9.79 %	1.42 %
Total wetlands	4,839.09	4,791.72	4,820.41	- 0.39 %	0.60 %

ICMP is using a modified table to present data for wetlands within the Coastal Zone boundary. NOAAprovided data supplies county-wide information, most of which is not applicable to the Coastal Zone due to the limited extent of the ICMP boundary as compared to the total size of the counties (the land-based portion of the ICMP boundary covers approximately 6.9% of land in Cook and Lake Counties).

The National Land Cover Database was used to obtain information for the wetland status and trends table for the coastal zone. The database offers historical snapshots that provide changes in wetlands over time. Wetland types included in the calculations include only emergent herbaceous wetlands and woody wetlands - open water is not included. Please note - the starting point for the National Land Cover Database is 2001 instead of 1996 originally indicated in the NOAA template table.

County-wide, there was a 2.36% decrease in wetlands in Cook County from 1996 to 2010 and a 0.45% increase in wetlands in Lake County in the same time period.

How Wetlands Are Changing				
Land Cover Type	Area of Wetlands Transformed to Another Type of Land Cover between 2001-2011 (Acres)	Area of Wetlands Transformed to Another Type of Land Cover between 2006-2011 (Acres)		
Development	161.24	20.68		
Agriculture	2.22	0.44		
Barren Land	12.23	9.79		
Water	26.24	26.24		

Modifications from the original NOAA table – changes are presented for a time period 2001-2011 instead of 1996-2011. Data presented in acres instead of square miles.

2. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the status and trends of coastal wetlands since the last assessment to augment the national data sets.

Based on information compiled as part of the Illinois Coastal Nonpoint Pollution Control Program (ICNPCP), fifty-four percent of wetlands and riparian acreage in the Illinois coastal zone is in protected status, i.e. owned by a park district, forest preserve, IDNR, etc. (ICNPCP, 2014). Unlike the Section 309 wetlands data, wetland calculations used in the ICNPCP include open water; therefore the data is not directly comparable between these two documents. However, the ICNPCP number shows that a large percentage of wetlands are owned by land-holding organizations.

The Lake County Stormwater Management Commission began developing a Wetland Restoration and Preservation Plan in 2015. The completed suite of products will include a detailed inventory and assessment of all wetlands in Lake County, including those in the Coastal Zone. This data will include information on various wetland functions (i.e., water quality enhancement, flood storage, habitat, etc.) that could be used to prioritize wetlands and will be available to the public, including IDNR for use or augmentation of any assessments performed.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if there have been any significant changes at the state or territory level (positive or negative) that could impact the future protection, restoration, enhancement, or creation of coastal wetlands since the last assessment.

Management Category	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Statutes, regulations, policies, or case law interpreting these	N/A
Wetlands programs (e.g., regulatory, mitigation, restoration, acquisition)	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

This is the first Section 309 assessment that the ICMP is conducting. The ICMP became established three years ago (January 2012) and therefore ICMP staff reviewed changes to statutes, regulations, policies, and agency programs that have been implemented in the last three years. Notable programs and developments are mentioned below.

Millennium Reserve

This initiative has increased the overall focus on the environment in the Calumet region, including protection and restoration of wetlands. The initiative is considered a significant positive change that focuses resources and attention on the region.

Illinois Wildlife Action Plan

The Wildlife Action Plan established the Wetlands Campaign. The Campaign works throughout the state but it focuses on priority regions, currently none of which are in the coastal zone. The Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) is developing a Lake Michigan Conservation Opportunity Area as part of the Illinois Wildlife Action Plan. The IWAP, including the Wetlands Campaign, is currently undergoing a revision that will be completed in 2015.

Natural Resources Restoration Trust Fund, Public Act 98-1010 (added at 30 ILCS 105/5.855)

This change amended the State Finance Act to create the Natural Resources Restoration Trust Fund. The Trust receives deposits of moneys from settlements for damage to natural resources and deposited funds can be used by IDNR for the investigation, assessment, restoration or replacement of injured or damaged natural resources. The Natural Resources Trust Fund was already in existence when this Act was passed but had never been officially established in the State Finance Act. No new funds were appropriated into the Trust. The outcome of the Act was to codify current practice, giving IDNR explicit statutory authority to use funds deposited in the Natural Resources Restoration Trust Fund. Funds from the Natural Resources Restoration Trust Fund have been used for wetland restoration programs, and could be used for wetlands in the Coastal Zone.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1. What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?

High Medium <u>X</u> Low

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

Protecting and preserving wetlands is an overall high priority for the Coastal Program. For the purposes of the Section 309 assessment, wetland enhancement area was ranked as a medium priority; however, a

wetland – focused strategy will be developed as part of the Coastal Hazards enhancement area. Historically, there has been an extensive wetland loss across the coastal area and there is a need to restore and protect the quality of wetlands that are left in the Coastal Zone. Although wetlands were ranked as medium priority for this assessment, ICMP has been involved in wetland restoration through Section 306 and 306A funds and plans to continue supporting other land management agencies and other organizations in their wetland restoration work through those means.

Stakeholders who were engaged through the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and the Coastal Advisory Group (CAG) were generally in agreement that wetlands are a high priority. TAC members emphasized the opportunities to refine data about coastal area wetlands, indicating there is a need for better data identifying remaining wetlands and determining their quality or degree of degradation. In the context of other Section 309 priorities, stakeholders supported the idea from staff to incorporate opportunities for enhancing and expanding coastal wetlands as part of the Coastal Hazards strategy in relation to stormwater issues.

Coastal Hazards

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Prevent or significantly reduce threats to life and property by eliminating development and redevelopment in high-hazard areas, managing development in other hazard areas, and anticipating and managing the effects of potential sea level rise and Great Lakes level change. §309(a)(2)

Note: For purposes of the Hazards Assessment, coastal hazards include the following traditional hazards and those identified in the CZMA: flooding; coastal storms (including associated storm surge); geological hazards (e.g., tsunamis, earthquakes); shoreline erosion (including bluff and dune erosion); sea level rise; Great Lake level change; land subsidence; and saltwater intrusion.

Resource Characterization:

1. Flooding: Using data from NOAA's State of the Coast "Population in the Floodplain" viewer and summarized by coastal county through NOAA's Coastal County Snapshots for Flood Exposure, indicate how many people were located within the state's coastal floodplain as of 2010 and how that has changed since 2000. You may to use other information or graphs or other visuals to help illustrate.

Population in the Coastal Floodplain				
Population Population Change in 2000 in 2010 2000-2010				
Number of people in coastal floodplain	232,238	248,709	6.62%	
Number of people in coastal counties	6,021,097	5,898,137	-2.04%	
Percentage of people in coastal counties in coastal floodplain	3.86%	4.22%	0.36%	

Questions 2 and 3 (Shoreline erosion and sea level rise for states other than Great Lakes) are not applicable to the Illinois Coastal Management Program.

4. Other Coastal Hazards: In the table below, indicate the general level of risk in the coastal zone for each of the coastal hazards. The state's multi-hazard mitigation plan is a good additional resource to support these responses.

Type of Hazard	General Level of Risk (H, M, L)
Flooding (riverine, stormwater)	High
Coastal storms (including storm surge)	High
Geological hazards (e.g., tsunamis, earthquakes)	Low
Shoreline erosion	High (in Lake County)
Great Lake level change	Medium
Land subsidence	Low

5. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional data or reports on the level of risk and vulnerability to coastal hazards within your state since the last assessment.

County-wide hazard mitigation plans were reviewed to gather more information and also to further understand the general level of risk for various hazards included in the above table.

Lake County Hazard Mitigation Plan indicates that the most prevalent natural hazards in Lake County are flooding, winter storms, and tornadoes. Seiche events and meteotsunamis impact Lake County and the Chicago area approximately once a year, with water levels rising 2 to 3 feet during such an event. The potential of bank erosion in Lake County is relatively high due to the number of steep slopes, streams, and channels in the Lake Michigan watersheds. There has been no recorded history, however, of landslides in Lake County.

The Cook County Hazard Mitigation Plan indicates that in the past seven years, there have been three presidential disaster declarations for severe storms; one for snow; and two for flooding. Flood damage is increasing in the Chicago River – North Branch watershed. Main reasons for increased urban flooding are urbanization of upland areas and increased rate and volume of stormwater runoff. Cook County experiences episodes of river flooding almost every year, and flooding can occur in any season. Large floods that can cause property damage typically occur every three to seven years. Portions of the County annually experience nuisance flooding related to drainage issues.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if significant state- or territorylevel changes (positive or negative) have occurred that could impact the CMP's ability to prevent or significantly reduce coastal hazards risk since the last assessment.

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)		
Statutes, regulations, policies, or case law in	nterpreting these that a	ddress:			
elimination of development/redevelopment in high-hazard areas	Yes	Yes	N/A		
management of development/redevelopment in other hazard areas	Yes	Yes	N/A		
climate change impacts, including sea level rise or Great Lake level change	Yes	Yes	N/A		
Hazards planning programs or initiatives that	Hazards planning programs or initiatives that address:				
hazard mitigation	Yes	Yes	N/A		
climate change impacts, including sea level rise or Great Lake level change	Yes	Yes	N/A		
Hazards mapping or modeling programs or initiatives for:					
sea level rise or Great Lake level change	Yes	Yes	N/A		
other hazards	Yes	Yes	N/A		

2. Briefly state how "high-hazard areas" are defined in your coastal zone.

The ICMP's Program Document does not contain a definition or designation of "high-hazard areas" for the Coastal Zone. The document identifies Areas of Particular Concern (APC) which have important coastal-related values or characteristics, or may face pressures which require detailed attention beyond the general planning and regulatory system. Designation of APCs entails considerations of hazards under Section 923.21(7) as follows:

Areas where, if development were permitted, it might be subject to significant hazard due to storms, slides, floods, erosion, settlement, salt water intrusion, and sea level rise;

Hazard areas are addressed as part of the APC Category for "Areas that protect, maintain or replenish coastal lands and significant resources subject to storms, floods, erosion, and settlement, including floodplains, wetlands, sand dunes, natural areas, offshore sand deposits, recreational areas, ports, lakefronts, marinas, public utilities, roads, infrastructure, and historic structures."

Hazards identified as part of this APC include erosion occurring on the coastal shoreline, in the ravine systems, and in the Waukegan River. APCs also include the Illinois Beach State Park and North Point Marina, including the Dead River and Kellogg Creek watersheds.

- 3. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

A legal review found no statutory, regulatory, policy, or case law changes relating to the elimination of development in high-hazard areas, the management/redevelopment in other hazard areas. However, IDNR promoted a law change creating a task force to study urban flooding and proposed a rule change aimed at water conservation in Lake Michigan.

<u>Urban Flooding Awareness Act, Public Act 98-858 (adding 315 ILCS 35/1-99)</u>

The Act requires IDNR, in collaboration with various other governmental and non-governmental entities, to conduct an urban flooding study and produce a report containing recommendations on issues of urban flooding. The study will evaluate trends in flood frequency and severity, the impact of climate change, policies, technologies, strategies for minimizing damages, and other related issues. The likely outcome is that findings and recommendations will help decision makers generate policies and regulations mitigating the impacts of urban flooding.

Proposed Amendments to 17 Ill. Adm. Code 3730, Allocation of Water from Lake Michigan

The proposed rule change would require individuals and entities with permits to use water from Lake Michigan to limit "non-revenue water" (or the difference between the net amount of water pumped annually and the water billed for) to 12% by 2015 and 10% by 2019. It also adds new permit conditions to require current water conservation practices. The proposed amendment has not been approved yet –

expected approval date is beginning of 2015. This change was not driven by 309. As proposed, the likely outcome of this rule is to update IDNR's water conservation requirements to reflect current best management practices and technologies.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?



2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

ICMP staff considered both coastal erosion and flooding issues in designating this enhancement area as a high priority for the program. TAC and CAG members agreed with the high priority designation. Some TAC members suggested that coastal erosion was a much higher priority for ICMP to deal with than flooding. TAC members pointed out that compared to flooding, erosion is a long-standing issue, especially at Illinois Beach State Park, and it has never been resolved for longer-term management. Currently there is a pressing need for resources and attention on this issue. It is solidly situated in ICMP's mission, and no one else is focused on it sufficiently. In comparison, there are numerous agencies focusing on the flooding issue. The resources ICMP can bring to coastal flooding are thought to be unlikely to make as much of an impact as on the erosion problems.

CAG members noted that this enhancement area could support the ravine adaptation projects underway, including efforts to reduce impervious surfaces. The recent storm on October 31, 2014 was a reminder of vulnerability of coastal infrastructure such as Lake Shore Drive. Strategies for increasing resilience of coastal infrastructure should be a priority. Also, there is optimism that strategies for reducing stormwater impacts are feasible in the coastal area.

Public Access

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Attain increased opportunities for public access, taking into account current and future public access needs, to coastal areas of recreational, historical, aesthetic, ecological, or cultural value. §309(a)(3)

Resource Characterization:

1. Use the table below to provide data on public access availability within the coastal zone.

Public Access Status and Trends			
Type of Access	Current Number	Change or Trend Since Last Assessment	Cite data source
Beach access sites	63	N/A	ICMP Program Document
Shoreline (other than beach) access sites	Not measured	N/A	N/A
Recreational boat (power or non-motorized) access site	32	N/A	ICMP Program Document
Number of designated scenic vistas or overlook points	0	N/A	N/A
Number of fishing access points (i.e. piers, jetties)	32 harbors and marinas, 2 inland lakes	N/A	ICMP Program Document
Coastal Trails/Boardwalks	109.46 miles	N/A	Cook and Lake Counties GIS data
Number of parkland/open space sites	235 sites	N/A	Cook and Lake Counties GIS data
Acres of parkland/open space	10,345 acres	N/A	Cook and Lake Counties GIS data
Other – dive sites	84 shipwrecks	N/A	GIS data

2. Briefly characterize the demand for coastal public access and the process for periodically assessing demand. Include a statement on the projected population increase for your coastal counties.

The population within the state's coastal shoreline counties is projected to increase by 2 percent between 2010 and 2020, thus increasing demand on the resources and increasing demand for access. Overall there has been an increase in the amount of trails in the Coastal Zone, and this trend is expected to continue as some trails (for example, around Wolf Lake; Cal-Sag Trail) are in various stages of development. Based on the 2015 draft Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, the 2014 Illinois Outdoor Recreation Survey found that more than three-quarters of Illinoisans believe there should be more public access to lakes, rivers, and streams. The survey is state-wide but generally there is a growing demand for water trail access (lake and inland waters) and additional facilities for paddlers in the Coastal Zone, as based on ICMP staff's discussions with partners and other stakeholder groups.

Emerging issues related to public access include public vs. private rights, such as the right to walk on a private beach or to land a kayak there.

3. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional data or reports on the status or trends for coastal public access since the last assessment.

Last state-wide inventory of recreational facilities was performed by IDNR in 2014. The inventory was used to provide information for the Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP). The SCORP is prepared as a 5-year document and is required to maintain Illinois' eligibility to participate in the federal Land and Water Conservation Fund program. The current draft SCORP was developed for the 2015-2019 time period and it provides a broad overview of the entire state, without specific focus on the Coastal Zone. There are no comprehensive local plans that provide a good overview of public access in the Coastal Zone. Various types of public access information can be found on websites for local parks districts, Enjoy Illinois website, etc.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if there have been any significant state- or territory-level management changes (positive or negative) that could impact the future provision of public access to coastal areas of recreational, historical, aesthetic, ecological, or cultural value.

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Statutes, regulations, policies, or case law interpreting these	Yes	Yes	N/A
Operation/maintenance of existing facilities	Yes	Yes	N/A
Acquisition/enhancement programs	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

This is the first Section 309 assessment that the ICMP is conducting. Notable programs and changes that occurred in the past 3 years are mentioned below.

IDNR Sustainability Act, Public Act 97-1136 (amending 20 ILCS 801/20-15 and 805)

This Act authorized IDNR to charge new user fees for many of its services and a \$2 surcharge on all vehicle licenses. The Act also gives IDNR authority to change an entrance fee to non-resident state parks visitors. This change was not 309 driven. The likely outcome is IDNR will have a more consistent funding source to finance and maintain costal management zone conservation projects, especially those in Illinois Beach State Park. IDNR has projected an additional \$30-33 million per year in revenue much of which must be used for maintenance of state parks and for IDNR's general operating budget.

Recreational Use of Land and Water Areas Act, Public Act 98-522 (amending 745 ILCS 65)

This act extended liability protections to landowners who allow the public to freely access their property for conservation and recreational activities. The Act creates a significant incentive for private landowners, land trusts, corporations, and public agencies to provide more land for outdoor recreation and restoration activities. Previously, protections only existed for hunting and recreational shooting. This change was not 309 driven. This change will lower the insurance costs for landowners who allow public access, thereby removing a significant barrier to public access on private land. Some of the private lands impacted are in the coastal zone, such as the 77-acre Openlands Lakeshore Preserve near Highland Park, Illinois.

3. Indicate if your state or territory has a publically available public access guide. How current is the publication and how frequently it is updated?

IDNR provides printed resources and also maintains information on recreational opportunities on the agency's website. Resources include maps, guides, and general information. There is no comprehensive guide that compiles all the information on coastal resources in one publication.

Public Access Guide	Printed	Online	Mobile App
State or territory has?	Yes	Yes	Yes – Chicago Water Walk app
(Y or N)			for Chicago lakefront
Web address		http://www.dnr.illinois.gov/r	http://chicagowaterwalk.org/ind
(if applicable)		ecreation/Pages/default.asp	ex.html
Date of last update	Various	2014	2013
Frequency of update	As needed	As needed	New app - no updates

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1. What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?

High	X
Medium	
Low	

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

ICMP staff considered this enhancement area as a potential high priority for examining access along the North Shore as well as researching issues of public trust with the lakebed that have been prominent recently. Public access is also a major focus currently in the Millennium Reserve. There has been progress there lately on the Cal-Sag Trail and Burnham Greenway and developing access to a potential land acquisition at Lake Calumet. Lake County communities have expressed interest in improving connections between modes of transportation and public access sites as well as connections between types of recreation, such as land and water trails.

TAC members offered a range of opinions. There was some question expressed about how strong the desire is for increased access in the North Shore, noting that existing access is largely structured in a way making it difficult for non-residents to use public recreation sites. There was a suggestion that ICMP might first survey North Shore municipal governments to determine their interest in increasing access and/or public ownership. An alternative view suggested that there are real opportunities for expanding access both in the North Shore and in parts of the far southern coastal area, including both water trails and fishing opportunities. CAG members noted that some communities are looking for ways to get more information on local coastal recreational opportunities into their schools.

Marine Debris

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Reducing marine debris entering the nation's coastal and ocean environment by managing uses and activities that contribute to the entry of such debris. §309(a)(4)

Resource Characterization:

1. In the table below, characterize the existing status and trends of marine debris in the state's coastal zone based on the best available data.

	Existing Status and Trends of Marine Debris in Coastal Zone				
Source of Marine Debris	Significance of Source (H, M, L, unknown)	Type of Impact (aesthetic, resource damage, user conflicts, other)	Change Since 2008/2009 (↑, ↓, −, unknown)		
Land-based					
Beach/shore litter	Medium	Aesthetic, wildlife impacts	About the same		
Dumping	Low	Aesthetic, wildlife impacts	About the same		
Storm drains and runoff	Medium	Aesthetic, resource damage	About the same		
Fishing (e.g., fishing line, gear)	Low	Aesthetic, wildlife impacts	About the same		
Great Lake-based					
Fishing (e.g., derelict fishing gear)	Low	Aesthetic, wildlife impacts	About the same		
Derelict vessels	Low	Aesthetic	About the same		
Vessel-based (e.g., cruise ship, cargo ship, general vessel)	Unknown				
Hurricane/Storm	Low	Aesthetic, resource damage	About the same		
Tsunami	N/A				

Assessment is based on evaluation of 2013/2014 debris data from Alliance for the Great Lakes – Adopta-Beach program. As part of Adopta-Beach, volunteers collect litter and record litter type and amount. Predominant litter collected on Illinois beaches includes cigarettes and plastic objects (such as food containers, beverage bottles). Bigger items such as tires and appliances are recorded only occasionally and in low numbers. Since ICMP has not conducted a Section 309 assessment previously, we looked at Adopta-Beach data for 2008/2009 to evaluate changes over time. Overall the types and amount of litter collected has remained unchanged.

2. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the status and trends or potential impacts from marine debris in the coastal zone since the last assessment.

In August 2013, Illinois-Indiana Sea Grant conducted a three-day survey of southern Lake Michigan to document the presence and abundance of microplastics. Samples were sent to SUNY at Fredonia for

processing and were sorted into three size classes and divided into five categories: fragment, pellet, line, film, and polystyrene foam. Fragments, pellets (including microbeads from personal care products), and line (including microfibers and fishing line) were the most abundant marine debris collected in open water. Documenting the presence of microplastics is only the first step—impacts to the food web must be assessed next. Illinois-Indiana Sea Grant seeks to continue to support research in this area and conducts education and outreach on marine debris issues affecting Lake Michigan.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if there have been any significant state- or territory-level management changes (positive or negative) for how marine debris is managed in the coastal zone.

Management Category	Employed by State/Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Marine debris statutes, regulations, policies, or case law interpreting these	No	N/A	N/A
Marine debris removal programs	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes and likely future outcomes of the changes.

Illinois Clean Marina Program

ICMP and partners established and lead the Illinois Clean Marina Certification Program, which is a voluntary, incentive-based program that encourages marina operators and recreational boaters to protect coastal water quality by engaging in environmentally sound operating and maintenance procedures. The program promotes operation and maintenance practices that prevent pollution and marine debris from entering coastal waterways, and officially recognizes marinas that meet all the eligibility criteria. This initiative was built upon foundational work developed by many Lake Michigan stakeholders and other Great Lakes state programs.

Microbead-free Waters, Public Act 98-638 (amending 415 ILCS 5/52.5)

Small plastic microbeads used in personal care products have been found in Lake Michigan and pose a threat to the State's environment. This act will ban the manufacture and sale of products using non-biodegradable plastic microbeads and will be implemented incrementally between 2017 and 2019. The likely outcome it to significantly reduce the amount of plastic deposited into Lake Michigan and other

Illinois waterways in the future. This statutory change was not driven by 309 or the CZM program, but is beneficial to the coastal zone management program as it addresses the issue of microplastics, which are harmful to the ecosystem.

People ex rel. Madigan v. J.T. Einoder, Inc. 2013 IL App (1st) 113498

In 2004, the legislature amended section 42(e) of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act to allow the State to request a mandatory injunction as a remedy for violation of the Environmental Protection Act. The trial court granted the State a mandatory injunction requiring the defendant to remove an unpermitted landfill, even though defendant's conduct related to the landfill ceased before the amendment of section 42(e) became effective. The First District upheld the mandatory injunction, finding the 2004 amendment applied retroactively. The likely outcome is a clarification that the State can ask for mandatory injunction to enforce any violations of the Environmental Protection Act, regardless of when the violation occurred.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1. What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?

High Medium Low

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

Marine debris was identified as a medium priority as there are no significant sources of debris identified in the Coastal Zone and there are partner organizations (primarily Alliance for the Great Lakes) that organize clean-up events. ICMP staff discussed possibilities for involvement and value added to existing programs by focusing on marine debris prevention and education.

TAC members pointed out the recent interest in microplastics and the food chain. There was overall agreement that this is an important issue, but it is one that functions at a higher geographic scale across Lake Michigan and the Great Lakes than what ICMP can readily impact. CAG members generally supported keeping this as a medium priority. Members noted that NOAA has an increasing interest in debris in the Great Lakes, and that in the future we could pursue this issue in relation to habitat restoration.

Cumulative and Secondary Impacts

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Development and adoption of procedures to assess, consider, and control cumulative and secondary impacts of coastal growth and development, including the collective effect on various individual uses or activities on coastal resources, such as coastal wetlands and fishery resources. §309(a)(5)

Resource Characterization:

1. Using National Ocean Economics Program Data on population and housing, please indicate the change in population and housing units in the state's coastal counties between 2012 and 2007. You may wish to add additional trend comparisons to look at longer time horizons as well (data available back to 1970), but at a minimum, please show change over the most recent five year period (2012-2007) to approximate current assessment period.

Trends in Coastal Population and Housing Units (within Illinois Coastal Zone)					
Year	Population		Housing		
	Total % Change (# of people) (compared to 2000)		Total (# of housing units)	% Change (compared to 2000)	
2007	5,991,867	-0.49	2,408,345	3.72%	
2012	5,898,959	-2.03	2,438,759	5.03%	

American Survey US Census Data was used to obtain information specific to the Coastal Zone. The % change was compared to the year 2000 instead of 2002 due to limited availability of data for 2002.

2. Using provided reports from NOAA's Land Cover Atlas or high-resolution C-CAP data (Pacific and Caribbean Islands only), please indicate the status and trends for various land uses in the state's coastal counties between 2006 and 2011. You may use other information and include graphs and figures, as appropriate, to help illustrate the information.

Distribution of Land Co	Distribution of Land Cover Types in Coastal Counties (Lake and Cook Counties)				
Land Cover Type	Land Area Coverage in 2011 (Acres)	Gain/Loss Since 2006 (Acres)			
Developed, High Intensity	97,088.32	2,435.89			
Developed, Low Intensity	193,455.18	3,469.58			
Developed, Open Space	295,776.90	334.48			
Grassland	106,730.92	2,011.34			
Scrub/Shrub	30,576.64	-3,131.77			
Barren Land	4,947.84	-2,267.54			
Open Water	3,847.43	-7.12			
Agriculture	27,573.42	-52.93			

Distribution of Land Cover Types in Coastal Counties (Lake and Cook Counties)				
Land Cover Type Land Area Coverage in 2011 Gain/Loss Since 2006 (Acres)				
Forested	41,741.10	-2,710.77		
Woody Wetland	66,915.54	633.16		
Emergent Wetland	35,731.98	-667.85		

3. Using provided reports from NOAA's Land Cover Atlas, please indicate the status and trends for developed areas in the state's coastal counties between 2006 and 2011 in the two tables below. You may use other information and include graphs and figures, as appropriate, to help illustrate the information.

Development Status and Trends for Coastal Counties (Lake and Cook Counties)				
2006 2011 Percent Net Change				
Percent land area developed	74.93%	75.83%	0.90%	
Percent impervious surface area 74.93% 75.85% 0.92%				

How Land Use is Changing in Coastal Counties			
Land Cover Type	Areas Lost to Development Between 2006-2011 (Acres)		
Barren Land	467.70		
Emergent Wetland	161.24		
Woody Wetland	594.46		
Open Water	135.66		
Agriculture	2676.97		
Scrub/Shrub	98.97		
Grassland	2654.28		
Forested	1488.93		

4. Using data from NOAA's State of the Coast "Shoreline Type" viewer, indicate the percent of shoreline that falls into each shoreline type. You may provide other information or use graphs or other visuals to help illustrate.

Shoreline types along Lake Michigan in the Illinois Coastal Zone		
Surveyed Shoreline Type	Percent of Shoreline	
Artificial	48.55%	
Barrier Beach	16.25%	
Sand beach/dunes	13.91%	
High bluff and beach	21.29%	

NOAA's State of the Coast data was not available for Illinois. GIS analysis was performed for categories most closely comparable to those in the original NOAA table. The original categories and their equivalents used in the above table are as follows: Armored = Artificial; Beaches = Barrier Beach; Flats = Sand beach/dunes; Rocky – no equivalent; Vegetated = High Bluff and Beach.

5. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the cumulative and secondary impacts of coastal growth and development, such as water quality and habitat fragmentation, since the last assessment to augment the national data sets.

No additional data.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if there have been any significant state-level changes (positive or negative) in the development and adoption of procedures to assess, consider, and control cumulative and secondary impacts of coastal growth and development, including the collective effect on various individual uses or activities on coastal resources, such as coastal wetlands and fishery resources, since the last assessment.

Management Category	Employed by State (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Guidance documents	Yes	Yes	N/A
Management plans (including Special Area Management Plans)	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

Metropolitan Water Reclamation District, Public Act 98-652 (amending 70 ILCS 2605/7h)

The Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, which is responsible for stormwater management in Cook County, may purchase real property from a willing seller in a voluntary transaction in furtherance of regional and local stormwater management activities. The Reclamation District could previously acquire land by eminent domain but is now specifically allowed to purchase land. This change was not 309 driven. The change gives the Reclamation District more options to acquire property for stormwater management.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1. What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?

High	
Medium	Χ
Low	

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

This enhancement area was ranked medium by ICMP as the Illinois coast is already heavily developed and the potential for new development is limited. There was some speculation by the TAC that this topic could be important for the coastal area, especially due to extensive shoreline armoring and sand entrapment issues linked to in-lake structures. Some skepticism was expressed about methods for researching this problem, and there was not a consensus to elevate the topic.

CAG members generally supported keeping this as a medium priority. There is widespread acknowledgement that the Illinois coast suffers from significant secondary impacts, such as the extensive armoring of the shoreline. However, that topic could also be addressed in the coastal hazards enhancement area.

Special Area Management Plans

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Preparing and implementing special area management plans for important coastal areas. §309(a)(6)

The Coastal Zone Management Act defines a Special Area Management Plan (SAMP) as "a comprehensive plan providing for natural resource protection and reasonable coastal-dependent economic growth containing a detailed and comprehensive statement of policies; standards and criteria to guide public and private uses of lands and waters; and mechanisms for timely implementation in specific geographic areas within the coastal zone. In addition, SAMPs provide for increased specificity in protecting natural resources, reasonable coastal-dependent economic growth, improved protection of life and property in hazardous areas, including those areas likely to be affected by land subsidence, sea level rise, or fluctuating water levels of the Great Lakes, and improved predictability in governmental decision making."

Resource Characterization:

1. In the table below, identify geographic areas in the coastal zone subject to use conflicts that may be able to be addressed through a special area management plan (SAMP). This can include areas that are already covered by a SAMP but where new issues or conflicts have emerged that are not addressed through the current SAMP.

Opportunities for New or Updated Special Area Management Plans			
Geographic Area Major issues			
Northern coastline including Waukegan, North Chicago, and Illinois	Erosion, invasive species, new land use		
Beach State Park			
William Powers State Recreation Area and Lake Calumet	Invasive species, restoration needs including hydrology and flow regime		
Millennium Reserve	Need for funding, coordination of projects		

2. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the status and trends of SAMPs since the last assessment.

Illinois Beach State Park and William Powers State Recreation Area are the only state-owned properties located within the Illinois Coastal Zone boundary. ICMP has been involved with various habitat projects at both locations, and currently ICMP is coordinating development of work plans for both sites. At Illinois Beach, ICMP has also been involved in coordination related to obtaining sand for the feeder beach. ICMP is also supporting planning efforts for multiple communities along the northern coastline, with most of the plans currently in development. Land acquisition of Lake Calumet is currently being pursued. If acquired, ICMP will work with the IDNR staff to determine ICMP's role in managing the property.

Millennium Reserve is an initiative that brings together communities, government, and businesses to focus on common goals of revitalizing economy and ecology and building strong communities in the Calumet Region. The northern portion of the Millennium Reserve is located within the Coastal Zone. The Millennium Reserve Steering Committee Report identifies priorities for the initiative. Natural resources priorities include providing access to Lake Calumet and developing a conservation compact to coordinate stewardship and conservation activities at ecologically important sites.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if there have been any significant state- or territory-level management changes (positive or negative) that could help prepare and implement SAMPs in the coastal zone.

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
SAMP policies, or case law interpreting these	Yes	Yes	N/A
SAMP plans	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

See <u>IDNR Sustainability Act, Public Act 97-1136</u> (discussed in Public Access section of this document). This change could positively impact Illinois Beach State Park and William Powers State Recreation Area, which are located within the costal management zone.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1. What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?

High
Medium X
Low

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

This enhancement area was ranked medium by ICMP as various planning efforts are currently ongoing. CAG members supported keeping this as a medium priority. There was some question expressed by TAC

nembers whether planning should be important for Millennium Reserve. Staff felt that there is a reater priority for implementation projects in Millennium Reserve, but that planning could be a priority future 309 Enhancement rounds.

Great Lakes Resources

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Planning for the use of Great Lakes resources. §309(a)(7)

Resource Characterization:

1. Understanding the ocean and Great Lakes economy can help improve management of the resources it depends on. Using Economics: National Ocean Watch (ENOW), indicate the status of the ocean and Great Lakes economy as of 2010, as well as the change since 2005, in the tables below. Include graphs and figures, as appropriate, to help illustrate the information.

Status of Great Lakes Economy for Coastal Counties (2010)					
	Establishments (# of Establishments)	Employment (# of Jobs)	Wages (Millions of Dollars)	GDP (Millions of Dollars)	
Living Resources	66	563	\$16.9	\$49	
Marine Construction	113	411	\$26.6	\$48.4	
Ship & Boat Building	20	819	\$35.5	\$67.1	
Marine Transportation	335	19,658	\$1,000	\$2,000	
Offshore Mineral Extraction	38	392	\$29.4	\$81.4	
Tourism & Recreation	2,058	61,552	\$1,600	\$3,800	
All Ocean Sectors	2,630	83,397	\$2,700	\$6,100	

Change in Great Lakes Economy for Coastal Counties (2005-2010)					
	Establishments (% change)	Employment (% change)	Wages (% change)	GDP (% change)	
Living Resources	3.03%	-3.60%	0.00%	21.29%	
Marine Construction	-22.12%	-40.09%	-13.64%	-18.24%	
Ship & Boat Building	-20.00%	-36.76%	-35.12%	-53.82%	
Marine Transportation	9.12%	-10.54%	7.97%	25.00%	
Offshore Mineral Extraction	0.00%	-44.55%	-40.24%	-37.53%	
Tourism & Recreation	9.00%	0.36%	12.50%	15.15%	
All Ocean Sectors	6.91%	-3.67%	8.00%	15.09%	

2. In the table below, characterize how the threats to and use conflicts over Great Lakes resources in the state's or territory's coastal zone have changed since the last assessment.

This is the first time that ICMP is conducting Section 309 assessment, therefore ICMP has no comparison data.

3. For the Great Lakes resources and uses in Table 2 (above) that had an increase in threat to the resource or increased use conflict in the state's or territory's coastal zone since the last assessment, characterize the major contributors to that increase.

This is the first time that ICMP is conducting Section 309 assessment, therefore ICMP has no comparison data.

4. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the status and trends of Great Lakes resources or threats to those resources since the last assessment to augment the national data sets.

No data.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if any significant state- or territory- level changes (positive or negative) in the management of Great Lakes resources have occurred since the last assessment?

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Statutes, regulations, policies, or case law interpreting these	Yes	Yes	N/A
Regional comprehensive ocean/Great Lakes management plans	Yes	Yes	N/A
State comprehensive ocean/Great Lakes management plans	No	N/A	N/A
Single-sector management plans	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

The Rivers, Lakes, and Streams Act, Public Act 98-78 (amending 615 ILCS 5/14(a))

The EPA is now required to report biennially to the Governor and members of the General Assembly on the hydrologic, biologic, and chemical data and recommendations related to the water quality and ecology in Lake Michigan. Previously, the EPA was required to submit the report annually. This change was not 309 driven. The EPA is now required to provide more frequent water quality data to policy makers. Coastal management zone projects can also benefit from more frequent data from the EPA on the water quality in Lake Michigan.

Fish and Aquatic Life Code, Public Act 98-771 (amending 515 ILCS 5/1-20)

This change expanded the definition of "aquatic life" to include mollusks, crustaceans, algae, aquatic plants, aquatic invertebrates and any other aquatic animals or plants that are identified in rules by the Department of Natural Resources. The previous definition was limited, making it difficult to exclude the introduction of some kinds of invasive species. This change was not driven by 309. This broader definition allows IDNR to limit the introduction of all types of invasive species.

Release of Aquatic Life, Public Act 98-1044 (amending 515 ILCS 5/10-100)

This Act makes it a Class B misdemeanor to release any aquatic life into the wild without first securing permission from the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR). The previous law made releasing aquatic life without a permit a petty offense. The bill's anticipated outcome is to address invasive species by deterring individuals from releasing aquatic life into the wild without permission from IDNR.

3. Indicate if your state or territory has a comprehensive ocean or Great Lakes management plan.

Comprehensive Ocean/Great Lakes Management Plan	State Plan	Regional Plan
Completed plan (Y/N) (If yes, specify	No*	Yes - Lake Michigan Lakewide Action and
year completed)		Management Plan (2008 update)
Under development (Y/N)		
Web address (if available)		http://www.epa.gov/glnpo/michigan.html
Area covered by plan		Lake Michigan basin

^{*}Although there is no state plan, the state is directly involved in development and implementation of Lakewide Action and Management Plan (LAMP).

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1. What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management program?

High	
Medium	X
Low	

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

This topic was ranked as a medium priority by ICMP as most of the issues are broader in scope and outside of ICMP's direct influence. CAG members supported keeping this as a medium priority. TAC members noted some interesting topics that could be worth investigation. These included decreased productivity in Lake Michigan related to dreissenid mussel populations; potential role for artificial reefs; and the potential for aquatic species restoration. They also identified the potential for improving habitat value of coastal structures (jetties, armoring, etc.), which could be incorporated into strategies for managing erosion issues at Illinois Beach. Overall there was consensus that the issue area is a medium priority, especially compared to other issue areas.

Energy and Government Facility Siting

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Adoption of procedures and enforceable policies to help facilitate the siting of energy facilities and Government facilities and energy-related activities and Government activities which may be of greater than local significance. §309(a)(8)33

Resource Characterization:

1. In the table below, characterize the status and trends of different types of energy facilities and activities in the state's or territory's coastal zone based on best available data. If available, identify the approximate number of facilities by type. The MarineCadastre.gov may be helpful in locating many types of energy facilities in the coastal zone.

Status and trends in energy facilities and activities in the coastal zone				
	Exists in Coastal Zone		Proposed in Coastal Zone	
Type of Energy Facility/Activity	(# or Y/N)	Change Since Last Assessment	(# or Y/N)	Change Since Last Assessment
Energy Transport				•
Pipelines	Yes	N/A	No	N/A
Electrical grid (transmission cables)	Yes	N/A	Unknown	N/A
Ports	Yes - 2	N/A	No	N/A
Liquid natural gas	Yes	N/A	Unknown	N/A
Other – petcoke transport	Yes	N/A		N/A
Energy Facilities		-		
Oil and gas	Yes - 3	N/A	No	N/A
Coal	Yes - 1	N/A	No	N/A
Nuclear	No	N/A	No	N/A
Wind	No	N/A	No*	N/A
Wave	No	N/A	No	N/A
Current	No	N/A	No	N/A
Hydropower	No	N/A	No	N/A
Ocean thermal energy conversion	NA	N/A	NA	N/A
Solar	No	N/A	Unknown	N/A
Biomass	Yes	N/A	Unknown	N/A

Coal facilities – In 2014, NRG Energy acquired the Midwest Generation power plant in Waukegan. Updated emission controls are being installed at the plant and according to an official with a parent company, the site will remain a coal-powered operation for the foreseeable future. Environmental groups have been advocating for the plant to be shut down or converted to a gas facility.

Nuclear energy facilities – There are no active facilities. The Zion Nuclear Power Plant was shut down in 1998. The facility still contains used nuclear fuel that was placed in the plant's onsite spent fuel pool. Decommissioning of the plant started in 2010 and includes dismantling the plant and removing material and parts to its Utah waste facility. Spent fuel will be placed in dry storage casks onsite at the Zion facility.

*Wind facilities - A 10-turbine wind farm four miles off Evanston's shoreline was proposed as part of the city's climate action plan. This proposal is in early stages of planning and there are no developers at this point.

2. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific information, data, or reports on the status and trends for energy facilities and activities of greater than local significance in the coastal zone since the last assessment.

No additional information.

3. Briefly characterize the existing status and trends for federal government facilities and activities of greater than local significance in the state's coastal zone since the last assessment.

The Great Lakes Naval Station is located in North Chicago. The facility is primarily used for training and contains 1,153 buildings situated on 1,628 acres and has 50 miles (80 km) of roadway to provide access to the base's facilities. There is also a boat harbor for use by Navy personnel. There are no expected changes to the status and activities at the Naval Station.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if significant state- or territorylevel changes (positive or negative) that could facilitate or impede energy and government facility siting and activities have occurred since the last assessment.

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Statutes, regulations, policies, or case law interpreting these	Yes	Yes	N/A
State comprehensive siting plans or procedures	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

Lake Michigan Wind Energy Act, Public Act 98-447 (20 ILCS 896/1-99)

The Lake Michigan Wind Energy Act authorized IDNR to adopt rules to grant permits for assessment, construction and operation leases for off-shore wind facilities. This Act allows the city to utilize wind energy, a large renewable energy resource positioned close to a metropolitan population center. This change was not 309 driven. In the future one outcome could be less reliance on power plants in the coastal zone that utilize fossil fuels. Also, off-shore wind energy presents ecosystem, aesthetic, and resource management concerns which might be considered in the Costal Management plans.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

1.	What level of price	rity is the enhancem	nent area for the coasta	l management progr	am?
- .	Williat ICVCI OI pilo	incy is the chinanicen	iciic ai ca ioi tiic coaste	ii iiiaiiageiiieiii piogi	М

High	X
Medium	
Low	

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

This was ranked as a high priority due to IDNR's responsibility to provide input on wind energy siting in Lake Michigan under the Lake Michigan Wind Energy Act, and the potential interest in development of off-shore wind energy in Evanston.

Although ICMP staff had focused their analysis on wind energy, the TAC suggested also considering petcoke siting criteria, noting the push to classify petcoke as an energy source. There is a data gap in independent research on petcoke impacts. Petcoke is further connected to coastal issues because the IDNR has issued a permit to use Lake Michigan water as a dust reducer at the Calumet petcoke sites.

TAC members offered differing opinions on prioritizing this topic. In favor, members noted the timeliness and the value of gathering mapping data both for the petcoke sites and for numerous lakebed layers relevant to wind energy (pipelines, shipping routes etc.) Others emphasized the challenge of a controversial topic like petcoke and the current low interest in wind energy as reasons to focus our resources elsewhere. CAG members questioned whether ICMP would be able to make a significant difference on the wind and petcoke issues, suggesting that resources are likely to come from other areas because of the many stakeholders and interests.

Aquaculture

Section 309 Enhancement Objective: Adoption of procedures and policies to evaluate and facilitate the siting of public and private aquaculture facilities in the coastal zone, which will enable states to formulate, administer, and implement strategic plans for marine aquaculture. §309(a)(9)

Resource Characterization:

1. In the table below, characterize the existing status and trends of aquaculture facilities in the state's coastal zone based on the best available data.

Type of	Status and trends of aquaculture facilities and activities				
Facility/Activity	# of Facilities	Approximate Economic Value	Change Since Last Assessment		
Bait shop	1	Unknown	N/A		

2. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the status and trends or potential impacts from aquaculture activities in the coastal zone since the last assessment.

Data for aquaculture facilities was obtained based on IDNR records for aquaculture permits. There is currently one aquaculture permit holder in Lake County and 11 in Cook County. Out of those, only one is located within the Coastal Zone. The single permit holder is a bait shop at Montrose Avenue Beach in Chicago. The data may be incomplete (other bait shops exist but may not have a permit). Additional research did not indicate any large-scale aquaculture facilities in the coastal zone.

Management Characterization:

1. Indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if there have been any stateor territory-level changes (positive or negative) that could facilitate or impede the siting of public or private aquaculture facilities in the coastal zone.

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Aquaculture comprehensive siting plans or procedures	Yes	No	N/A
Other aquaculture statutes, regulations, policies, or case law interpreting these	Yes	No	N/A

- 2. For any management categories with significant changes, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information:
 - a. Describe the significance of the changes;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

The Illinois Aquaculture Development Plan was developed in 1987. Nearly all regulatory authority for aquaculture and fish importation is promulgated though IDNR. There have been no significant changes to policies related to aquaculture.

Enhancement Area Prioritization:

 What level of priority is the enhancement area for the coastal management pro

High	
Medium	
Low	X

2. Briefly explain the reason for this level of priority. Include input from stakeholder engagement, including the types of stakeholders engaged.

This was ranked as low priority by ICMP since aquaculture is not a major economic endeavor in the Coastal Zone. TAC members felt this issue could be economically relevant in the coastal area in the future. However there was no push to elevate the priority of this topic. CAG members supported keeping this as a low priority.

Phase II Assessments

Coastal Hazards

In-Depth Resource Characterization:

Purpose: To determine key problems and opportunities to improve the CMP's ability to prevent or significantly reduce coastal hazard risks by eliminating development and redevelopment in high-hazard areas and managing the effects of potential sea level rise and Great Lakes level change.

1a. Flooding In-depth (for all states besides territories): Using data from NOAA's State of the Coast "Population in the Floodplain" viewer and summarized by coastal county through NOAA's Coastal County Snapshots for Flood Exposure, indicate how many people at potentially elevated risk were located within the state's coastal floodplain as of 2010.

2010 Pop	2010 Populations in Coastal Counties at Potentially Elevated Risk to Coastal Flooding			
	Under 5 and Over 65 years old		In Poverty	
	# of people	% Under 5/Over 65	# of people	% in Poverty
Inside Floodplain	53,576	21.54%	21,738	8.74%
Outside Floodplain	1,069,000	18.9%	919,465	16.28%

NOAA's State of the Coast was utilized to gather information on the 2010 population in coastal counties living inside the floodplain. Information for the 2010 Populations in Coastal Counties living outside the floodplain was compiled from US Census.

1b. Flooding In-depth (for all states besides territories): Using summary data provided for critical facilities, derived from FEMA's HAZUS and displayed by coastal county through NOAA's Coastal County Snapshots for Flood Exposure, indicate how many different establishments (businesses or employers) and critical facilities are located in the FEMA floodplain. You can provide more information or use graphs or other visuals to help illustrate or replace the table entirely if better information is available.

	Critical Facilities in the FEMA Floodplain						
	Schools	Police	Fire Stations	Emergency	Medical	Communication	
	30110013	Stations	The Stations	Centers	Facilities	Towers	
Inside	1	0	1	0	2	78	
Floodplain							
Coastal	4011	233	393	16	1077	12,262	
Counties							

Facility numbers were provided by the Illinois Emergency Management Agency.

2. Based on the characterization of coastal hazard risk, what are the three most significant coastal hazards within the coastal zone? Also indicate the geographic scope of the hazard, i.e., is it prevalent throughout the coastal zone or are specific areas most at risk?

Type of Hazard		Geographic Scope (throughout coastal zone or specific areas most threatened)
Hazard 1	Erosion/Accretion	Focus on North Shore – Evanston to Wisconsin state line
Hazard 2	Stormwater/flooding	Throughout

- 3. Briefly explain why these are currently the most significant coastal hazards within the coastal zone. Cite stakeholder input and/or existing reports or studies to support this assessment.
 - Continued development in the Coastal Zone together with increasing severity of storms and ongoing wetland loss have led to increased risk of flooding damage in the urban areas. Severe storms are also exacerbating erosion along the north shore and in the ravines. Erosion at some sites, including Illinois Beach State Park, is a long-standing issue that has not been resolved for long-term management. Severe erosion in some locations results in extensive, and sometimes problematic, accretion in other downdrift areas. Particular problems include blockage of entrance channel to port facilities and clogging water intake pipes.
- 4. Are there emerging issues of concern, but which lack sufficient information to evaluate the level of the potential threat? If so, please list. Include additional lines if needed.

Emerging Issue	Information Needed	
Coastal storms	Understanding patterns and minimizing impacts	

In-Depth Management Characterization:

Purpose: To determine the effectiveness of management efforts to address identified problems related to the coastal hazards enhancement objective.

1. For each coastal hazard management category below, indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if there has been a significant change since the last assessment.

Management Category	Employed by State/Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Change Since the Last Assessment (Y or N)
Statutes, Regulations, and Policies:			
Shorefront setbacks/no build areas	N	N	N/A
Rolling easements	N	N	N/A
Repair/rebuilding restrictions	Υ	N	N/A
Hard shoreline protection structure restrictions	Υ	N	N/A
Promotion of alternative shoreline stabilization methodologies (i.e., living shorelines/green infrastructure)	Y	Y	N/A
Repair/replacement of shore protection structure restrictions	Y	N	N/A
Inlet management	N	N	N/A
Protection of important natural resources for hazard mitigation benefits (e.g., dunes, wetlands, barrier islands, coral reefs) (other than setbacks/no build areas)	Y	Y	N/A
Repetitive flood loss policies (e.g., relocation, buyouts)	Y	Ν	N/A
Freeboard requirements	Υ	N	N/A
Real estate sales disclosure requirements	Υ	N	N/A
Restrictions on publicly funded infrastructure	Y	N	N/A

Management Category	Employed by State/Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Change Since the Last Assessment (Y or N)
Infrastructure protection (e.g., considering hazards	Υ	Υ	N/A
in siting and design)			
Other – state executive order	Υ	N	N/A
Management Planning Programs or Initiatives:			
Hazard mitigation plans	Υ	N	N/A
Sea level rise/Great Lake level change or climate	Υ	Υ	N/A
change adaptation plans			
Statewide requirement for local post-disaster	Υ	N	N/A
recovery planning			
Sediment management plans	N	Υ	N/A
Beach nourishment plans	Υ	Υ	N/A
Special Area Management Plans (that address	N	N	N/A
hazards issues)			
Managed retreat plans	N	N	N/A
Other (please specify)			
Research, Mapping, and Education Programs or Initia	tives:		
General hazards mapping or modeling	Υ	Υ	N/A
Sea level rise mapping or modeling	N	N	N/A
Hazards monitoring (e.g., erosion rate, shoreline	Υ	Υ	N/A
change, high-water marks)			•
Hazards education and outreach	Υ	Υ	N/A
Other – flood mapping performed in house	Υ		

2. Identify and describe the conclusions of any studies that have been done that illustrate the effectiveness of the state's management efforts in addressing coastal hazards since the last assessment. If none, is there any information that you are lacking to assess the effectiveness of the state's management efforts?

N/A

Identification of Priorities:

1. Considering changes in coastal hazard risk and coastal hazard management since the last assessment and stakeholder input, identify and briefly describe the top one to three management priorities where there is the greatest opportunity for the CMP to improve its ability to more effectively address the most significant hazard risks. (Approximately 1-3 sentences per management priority.)

Management Priority 1: Management of shoreline erosion and accretion

Description: Coordinate efforts and studies and develop strategies for management of shoreline erosion and accretion, and improving strategies and outreach for management of ravine erosion

Management Priority 2: <u>Improving stormwater management</u>

Description: Stormwater management is an increasing challenge in the urban environment and a variety of solutions should be employed to effectively capture water and reduce flooding and the damage associated with it. Coordination of work among different entities, performing research and studies, and utilization of green infrastructure will allow development of solutions to increase infiltration, improve water quality, and minimize flooding.

2. Identify and briefly explain priority needs and information gaps the CMP has for addressing the management priorities identified above. The needs and gaps identified here should not be limited to those items that will be addressed through a Section 309 strategy but should include any items that will be part of a strategy.

Priority Needs	Need? (Y or N)	Brief Explanation of Need/Gap
Research	Υ	Erosion mitigation strategies; wetland characterization
Mapping/GIS/modeling	Υ	Shoreline changes; wetland locations; sediment movement;
Data and information management	Υ	Manage and share data effectively
Training/Capacity building	Y	Ravine management strategies; sand management strategies; wetland usage for stormwater.
Decision-support tools	N	
Communication and outreach	Y	Shoreline and sediment management; ravine management; stormwater management
Other (Specify)	N	

Enhancement Area Strategy Development:

1.	Will the CMP dev	velop on	e or moi	re strategies for this enhancement area?
	Yes	X	No	

2. Briefly explain why a strategy will or will not be developed for this enhancement area.

The hazards identified are a significant issue in the Illinois Coastal Zone, and the coastal program can play an important role in addressing unmet needs related to these hazards.

Public Access

In-Depth Resource Characterization:

Purpose: To determine key problems and opportunities to improve the CMP's ability to increase and enhance public access opportunities to coastal areas.

1. Use the table below to provide additional data on public access availability within the coastal zone not reported in the Phase I assessment.

Public Access Status and Trends				
Type of Access	Current number	Changes or Trends Since Last Assessment $(\uparrow, \downarrow, \neg, unkwn)$	Cite data source	
Access sites that are ADA	No. of Sites More than 76	N/A	Chicago Park District, ICMP	
compliant	Percent of Sites More than 36%		Program Document	

ICMP staff researched ADA accessible beaches, marinas, fishing spots, and parks in the Illinois coastal zone. Information on ADA compliance was not available for all sites. All harbors and marinas are required to be ADA accessible, and there are a number of Chicago beaches which are ADA compliant. We were unable to assess ADA compliance for trails and local parks located in the coastal zone.

2. What are the three most significant existing or emerging threats or stressors to creating or maintaining public access within the coastal zone? Indicate the geographic scope of the stressor, i.e., is it prevalent throughout the coastal zone or are specific areas most threatened? Stressors can be private development (including conversion of public facilities to private); non-water-dependent commercial or industrial uses of the waterfront; increased demand; erosion; sea level rise or Great Lakes level change; natural disasters; national security; encroachment on public land; or other (please specify). When selecting significant stressors, also consider how climate change may exacerbate each stressor.

Stressor/Threat	Geographic Scope (throughout coastal zone or specific areas most threatened)
Increased demand	Throughout the coastal zone
Erosion	Illinois Beach State Park, northern shoreline, rivers
Barriers to access – fees, lack of transportation,	Throughout the coastal zone
lack of boat ramps	

3. Briefly explain why these are currently the most significant stressors or threats to public access within the coastal zone. Cite stakeholder input and/or existing reports or studies to support this assessment.

Increased demand and existing barriers to access were brought up as main access issues by members of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). Increased demand is connected to increasing population as well as to new types of recreational activities available along the coast. Increased demand is also connected to the emerging issue of public versus private access along the beach. TAC members mentioned the need to further understand how accessible the coast actually is, and whether all users can equally partake in recreational activities along the coast. Erosion has been an ongoing issue for many of the northern areas in the coastal zone, including Illinois Beach State Park (IBSP). Erosion issues become exacerbated with more frequent and violent storms – for example, at IBSP, storm-caused erosion resulted in 6 foot drops from the beach to the lake. Erosion control measures, such as engineered shorelines, may also impact the level and type of access.

4. Are there emerging issues of concern, but which lack sufficient information to evaluate the level of the potential threat? If so, please list. Include additional lines if needed.

Emerging Issue	Information Needed
Public vs. private rights for beach access (issues	Assessment of need
of public trust lands)	

In-Depth Management Characterization:

Purpose: To determine the effectiveness of management efforts to address identified problems related to the public access enhancement objective.

1. For each additional public access management category below that was not already discussed as part of the Phase I assessment, indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if significant changes (positive or negative) have occurred at the state- or territory-level since the last assessment.

Management Category	Employed by State/Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Comprehensive access management planning	Yes	Yes	N/A
GIS mapping/database of access sites	Yes – for some resources	Yes	N/A
Public access technical assistance, education, and outreach (including access point and interpretive signage, etc.)	Yes	Yes	N/A

- 2. For management categories with significant changes since the last assessment, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information.
 - a. Describe significant changes since the last assessment;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

Not applicable

3. Identify and describe the conclusions of any studies that have been done that illustrate the effectiveness of the state's management efforts in providing public access since the last assessment. If none, is there any information that you are lacking to assess the effectiveness of the state's management efforts?

ICMP did not identify any studies that analyze the effectiveness of the state's management efforts in providing public access.

Identification of Priorities:

1. Considering changes in public access and public access management since the last assessment and stakeholder input, identify and briefly describe the top one to three management priorities where there is the greatest opportunity for the CMP to improve the effectiveness of its management effort to better respond to the most significant public access stressors. (Approximately 1-3 sentences per management priority.)

Management Priority 1: Identify current level of use, barriers to access, and future needs.

Description: There is a lack of comprehensive assessment on the state of public access in the coastal zone. Increased demand and changing needs make it important for ICMP to gain a better understanding of public access so that we can use our funds most effectively.

Management Priority 2: Address erosion issues.

Description: Erosion creates unsafe conditions and directly limits access at existing recreational areas. Erosion solutions are needed to ensure that the public can safely access Lake Michigan and its shoreline.

Management Priority 3: Expand access opportunities.

Description: Enhance existing public access opportunities and develop new opportunities for increased access.

2. Identify and briefly explain priority needs and information gaps the CMP has to help it address the management priorities identified above. The needs and gaps identified here do not need to be limited to those items that will be addressed through a Section 309 strategy but should include any items that will be part of a strategy.

Priority Needs	Need? (Y or N)	Brief Explanation of Need/Gap
Research	Yes	Research existing opportunities, future needs, erosion solutions, and research current and desired human uses and patterns.
Mapping/GIS	Yes	Mapping of existing opportunities
Data and information management	Yes	Management of GIS data; survey data, etc.
Training/Capacity building	Yes	Training and capacity-building for communities to provide appropriate access, ADA compliance, and expansion options.
Decision-support tools	Yes	Analysis of needs to support planning efforts
Communication and outreach	Yes	Education, providing information on availability of resources

Enhancement Area Strategy Development:

1.	Will the CMP	develop one	or more	e strategies for this	enhancement area?
	Yes	<u>X</u>	_No		

2. Briefly explain why a strategy will or will not be developed for this enhancement area.

Public access was identified as one of the high-priority areas for the ICMP. Public access issues affect a large portion of the coastal population and have direct impacts on local communities and economies. There is a need to engage the public and understand the public's perceptions and priorities. Also, given the many organizations involved in public access along the coast, this topic would benefit from an integrated approach that considers all the various interests and players.

Energy and Government Facility Siting

In-Depth Resource Characterization:

Purpose: To determine key problems and opportunities relating to the siting of energy and government facility siting and activities that may be of greater than local significance.

1. What are the three most significant existing or emerging challenges to facilitating energy and government facility siting and activities within the coastal zone? Indicate the geographic scope of the challenge, i.e., is it prevalent throughout the coastal zone or are specific areas most threatened? Challenges can be conflicting uses; coastal resource impacts; coordinating regulatory processes or review; insufficient data; natural disasters; national security; or other (please specify). When selecting significant challenges, also consider how climate change may exacerbate each challenge.

Challenges	Geographic Scope (throughout coastal zone or specific	
Insufficient data	Offshore and nearshore habitat	
Coastal resource impacts	Offshore and nearshore habitat	
Developing regulatory process	Offshore and nearshore habitat	

The energy siting assessment is primarily focused on offshore wind energy. Offshore wind energy development is in various stages of feasibility and planning nationwide and in the Great Lakes. In Illinois, the Lake Michigan Wind Energy Act (20 ILCS 896/1-99, effective August 16, 2013) authorized Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) to adopt rules to grant permits for assessment, construction and operation leases for off-shore wind facilities. Multiple challenges exist in relation to gathering data on resources present in areas of potential wind development and understanding potential impacts associated with both wind energy and transmission cables. Data is needed to inform regulatory process that may be established in the future.

2. Briefly explain why these are currently the most significant challenges to facilitating energy and government facility siting and activities within the coastal zone. Cite stakeholder input and/or existing reports or studies to support this assessment.

Resources assessment and understanding of resource impacts have been identified by the ICMP's Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) members as an important need that should be addressed by ICMP. The Lake Michigan Wind Energy Act authorized IDNR to adopt rules to grant permits for assessment, construction and operation leases for off-shore wind facilities. However, there are gaps in our scientific knowledge that are preventing informed identification of important nearshore and offshore habitat features and resources that must be protected because they support important sport, commercial and nongame fish and wildlife populations, or support other important uses and needs.

3. Are there emerging issues of concern, but which lack sufficient information to evaluate the level of the potential threat? If so, please list. Include additional lines if needed.

Emerging Issue	Information Needed
Storage and transfer of petcoke	Study of impacts, coordination of regulatory agencies
Increased shipping of oil products	Study of impacts, coordination of regulatory agencies

In-Depth Management Characterization:

Purpose: To determine the effectiveness of management efforts to address identified problems related to the energy and Government facilities enhancement objective.

 For each additional energy and government facilities management category below that was not already discussed as part of the Phase I assessment, indicate if the approach is employed by the state or territory and if significant state- or territory-level changes (positive or negative) have occurred since the last assessment.

Management Category	Employed by State or Territory (Y or N)	CMP Provides Assistance to Locals that Employ (Y or N)	Significant Changes Since Last Assessment (Y or N)
Energy and government facility/activity research, assessment, monitoring	Yes	No	N/A
Energy and government facility/activity GIS mapping/database	Yes	No	N/A
Energy and government facility siting technical assistance, education, and outreach	Yes	No	N/A

- 2. For management categories with significant changes since the last assessment, briefly provide the information below. If this information is provided under another enhancement area or section of the document, please provide a reference to the other section rather than duplicate the information.
 - a. Describe significant changes since the last assessment;
 - b. Specify if they were 309 or other CZM-driven changes; and
 - c. Characterize the outcomes or likely future outcomes of the changes.

Not applicable.

3. Identify and describe the conclusions of any studies that have been done that illustrate the effectiveness of the state's or territory's management efforts in facilitating energy and government facility siting and activities since the last assessment. If none, is there any information that you are lacking to assess the effectiveness of the state's or territory's management efforts?

The Illinois Lake Michigan Offshore Wind Advisory Council developed an advisory report in which it recommends that IDNR should develop a detailed offshore wind siting matrix that provides a clear process to identify which portions of Lake Michigan are acceptable for offshore

wind development. IDNR will need to compile data and perform necessary analysis to determine areas acceptable for offshore wind energy development. As there are no off-shore wind facilities in Lake Michigan yet, other offshore wind energy management efforts have not been undertaken.

Identification of Priorities:

1. Considering changes in energy and government facility siting and activities, the management of these facilities and activities since the last assessment, and stakeholder input, identify and briefly describe the top one to three management priorities where there is the greatest opportunity for the CMP to improve its ability to facilitate the siting of energy and government facilities and activities to address the most significant energy and government facility siting and activity challenges identified. (Approximately 1-3 sentences per management priority.)

Management Priority 1: Gather data that would inform development of off-shore wind siting rules.

Description: This priority includes performing studies and research to identify important nearshore and offshore habitat features and resources that must be protected due to their high value for fish, wildlife or other uses.

Management Priority 2: Gather information on emerging issues related to storage and transfer of energy products and by-products.

Description: This priority would focus on gathering information to evaluate the emerging uses within the coastal zone and their potential impacts on resources.

2. Identify and briefly explain priority needs and information gaps the CMP has to help it address the management priorities identified above. The needs and gaps identified here do not need to be limited to those items that will be addressed through a Section 309 strategy but should include any items that will be part of a strategy.

Priority Needs	Need? (Y or N)	Brief Explanation of Need/Gap
Research	Yes	Types of habitats and resources present in areas with potential for wind development
Mapping/GIS	Yes	Mapping habitat types, other resources, and their extent
Data and information management	Yes	Management and analysis of data collected, sharing data with other IDNR divisions and other organizations
Training/Capacity building	No	
Decision-support tools	Yes	Tools that would lead to identification of areas that should be avoided, or areas that development could be focused
Communication and outreach		Outreach to stakeholder groups and experts to gather information and input on resources, uses, opportunities, and challenges.

Enhancement Area Strategy Development:

1.	Will the CMP dev	op one or more strategies for this enhancement area?
	Yes	
	No	<u>X</u>

2. Briefly explain why a strategy will or will not be developed for this enhancement area.

ICMP will not develop a strategy for the Energy and Government Facility Siting. In the draft document, ICMP proposed a strategy focused on gathering data on the near shore and fish habitats that could be impacted by off-shore wind facilities. ICMP considered this strategy in order to be proactive on the issue and to gather data before there is a strong economic push to develop off-shore wind energy. Many of the public comments received on the draft document stated that this strategy should not be undertaken by ICMP, and after additional considerations, ICMP decided to remove the strategy.

ICMP will not currently develop a strategy for storage and transfer of petcoke. The City of Chicago issued regulations to require existing petcoke facilities to enclose all of their storage piles and take other measures to prevent dust from leaving the site. In addition, the City recently passed ordinance that prohibits the establishment of any new petcoke and coal facilities or the expansion of any existing facilities. ICMP is following this emerging issue and the regulations which are being developed. If needed, ICMP will use other funds to further study the issue.

Strategies for Priority Enhancement Areas

Coastal Hazards - Shoreline Erosion and Accretion

I.	Issue Area(s) The proposed strategy or implementation activities will support the following high- priority enhancement areas (check all that apply): Aquaculture Energy & Government Facility Siting Wetlands Coastal Hazards Marine Debris Ocean/Great Lakes Resources Public Access Special Area Management Planning
II.	Strategy Description
A.	The proposed strategy will lead to, or implement, the following types of program changes (check all that apply): A change to coastal zone boundaries; New or revised authorities, including statutes, regulations, enforceable policies, administrative decisions, executive orders, and memoranda of agreement/understanding; New or revised local coastal programs and implementing ordinances; New or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs; New or revised special area management plans (SAMP) or plans for areas of particular concern (APC) including enforceable policies and other necessary implementation mechanisms or criteria and procedures for designating and managing APCs; and, New or revised guidelines, procedures, and policy documents which are formally adopted by a state or territory and provide specific interpretations of enforceable CZM program policies to applicants, local government, and other agencies that will result in meaningful improvements in coastal resource management.
В.	Strategy Goal: State the goal of the strategy for the five-year assessment period. The goal should be the specific

State the goal of the strategy for the five-year assessment period. The goal should be the specific program change to be achieved or be a statement describing the results of the project with the expectation that achieving the goal would eventually lead to a program change.

The goal of this strategy is to develop a programmatic framework that will improve management of shoreline erosion and accretion issues. The framework includes the following components: 1) development of a regional coastal information system; 2) professional and technical support and applied research; 3) establishment of a coastal working group including communities, industries and key landowning entities; 4) and a facilitated forum to support development of regional shoreline management policies, local ordinances, memoranda of agreement; and administrative decisions as desired or necessary to achieve economically and environmentally sustainable shoreline management. The Illinois Department of Natural Resources is a significant landowner in the focus area, and this strategy will include a strong focus on addressing serious erosion issues at Illinois Beach State Park through new policies and procedures at this site and consideration of a Special Area Management Plan.₇

C. Describe the proposed strategy and how the strategy will lead to and/or implement the program changes selected above. If the strategy will only involve implementation activities, briefly describe the program change that has already been adopted, and how the proposed activities will further that program change. (Note that implementation strategies are not to exceed two years.)

The Shoreline Erosion and Accretion strategy is needed to understand and address serious sediment erosion and accretion issues, especially along the North Shore of the Illinois coast from the Wisconsin state line south to at least Evanston and possibly farther south into the City of Chicago. The Illinois North Shore coast involves a geologically recent beach ridge plain that is migrating southward due to prevailing winds and currents. This region of sand, sediments and gravel has been moving southward through periods of higher and lower lake levels over the past 11,000 years.

The Illinois coast is a mix of armored and natural shorelines. Natural movements of sediments along the shore, weather patterns, extreme storm events, changing water levels, and manmade infrastructure along the coastline are just some of the challenges that have to be considered for managing the shoreline. Certain areas, such as Illinois Beach State Park, experience significant erosion of sand that results in limited access to the beach. Other areas, such as Waukegan Harbor, are subject to sand accretion that results in limited access to ports and increased dredging costs, among other issues.

Currently, Illinois' North Shore coastal communities manage the issues of coastal erosion and excess sand deposition (accretion) individually, though they are all part of a regional geological system and ecosystem. Some communities are excessively burdened with managing accumulating sand that clogs harbor entrances and makes beaches more attractive to seagulls and other birds that contribute to bacterial loads that causes swimming bans. Other neighboring communities lose their beaches and have to pay a premium to rebuild them, only to have the sand wash away in the next storm. There is a need for regional coordination and development of policies, procedures and agreements to address this issue in a sustainable way.

The activities needed to implement this strategy include the following:

- Develop and facilitate a working group of communities and shoreline stakeholders to build recognition of this regional challenge and identify specific issues and needs that must be addressed. Community engagement is critical to finding sustainable solutions across municipal boundaries and landowners.
- Establish a partnership with the Illinois State Geological Survey (ISGS) and other relevant research institutions to provide ongoing technical and scientific expertise for the program.
- Provide funding for the coastal geologist position which has been vacant within ISGS for a number of years.
- Develop an Illinois Coastal database by collecting and synthesizing historical and current data, and coordinate with other research and management entities (e.g. US Army Corps of Engineers).
- Determine information gaps; identify and pursue research needs.
- Coordinate targeted studies on littoral processes, and establish a long-term coastal monitoring program.
- Investigate other sediment management projects and explore engineering solutions

to regional issues.

- Provide assistance to coastal communities on littoral drift and other geologic issues, and assistance to land managers with erosion and accretion issues.
- Maintain engagement with coastal communities and landowners to provide data and information, provide facilitation among communities, formulate strategies in response to local and regional issues, and provide training and support for community decision making.
- Convene and assist various offices of the Illinois Department of Natural Resources
 (IDNR) to develop specific, sustainable and complementary strategies to control
 erosion at Illinois Beach State Park; establish IDNR policies and procedures for
 shoreline management; and develop Memoranda of Agreement with other regional
 partners to formalize sustainable strategies for long-term management.
- Provide or develop model ordinances, agreements, and policies to municipalities and landowners based on their needs and interest in managing their shoreline issues.
- Provide technical support to land managers and local municipalities to implement necessary strategies by providing guidance and direction on funding, programs, and other opportunities for assistance.

These activities will lead to a development of a shoreline management program that is based on cooperation, solution-driven research, data collection and data management in order to develop and provide a clearinghouse of shore management strategies. Over the course of 5 years, we will develop annual work plans that build on existing data and knowledge and add strategic and focused projects to enhance our understanding of the natural and man-made processes that are influencing the coastal zone.

III. Needs and Gaps Addressed

Identify what priority needs and gaps the strategy addresses and explain why the proposed program change or implementation activities are the most appropriate means to address the priority needs and gaps. This discussion should reference the key findings of the assessment and explain how the strategy addresses those findings.

In the 1970's and 1980's, Illinois had a very active shoreline processes research program. Unfortunately this program has not been active for many years, resulting in a significant need to update our knowledge and understanding of coastal processes, including littoral transport, and coastal erosion and accretion. The Illinois shoreline has several distinct geologic features, and includes two counties, 14 municipalities and a 7 mile reach of a state park. Reestablishing a coastal research program will allow us to incorporate not only advances in coastal science but also will allow us to include potential climate change impacts which will assist in developing management strategies that are more resilient.

The following are specific areas of needs and gaps related to improving our knowledge and understanding of coastal processes along the Illinois shoreline and improving shoreline management through regional coordination:

1. Investigations for management of the State-owned Illinois Beach State Park where areas of high quality dune and swale habitat are being lost; recreational beaches and infrastructure are being

- damaged; and accelerated erosion is releasing buried debris from abandoned housing and development.
- 2. Compiling an inventory of shoreline structures. This inventory, when coupled with a long term monitoring of shoreline changes, can enable the beginning of an analysis of individual and cumulative effect of shoreline structures and protection measures on erosion, accretion and inlake and on shore habitats.
- 3. Analysis of traditional and novel shoreline protection measures and sediment bypass strategies for use along the Illinois Coast.
- 4. Re-initiation of long-term shoreline monitoring program.
- 5. Development of tools and outreach material to promote cooperation, coordination, and use of regional strategies for shoreline management.
- 6. Facilitation of community and shoreline stakeholder workgroup meetings and coordination among local, state, and federal agencies.

The establishment of the coastal geologist position will be integral to development of the shoreline erosion and accretion program framework. By re-establishing and housing a coastal geologist with ICMP, the program will have on-staff expertise for pertinent coastal geologic issues and an ability to focus on key areas of need outlined above. Some of these activities could be accomplished in other ways, but having a focused staff person guided by specific program needs will not only allow us to address currently identified gaps, but also to consistently review and revise needs/gaps as needed for real-world solutions. Unlike a private, for profit consultant, a coastal geologist on staff can work towards goals at both a site scale and through taking a holistic view of the shoreline without the worry of billing hours or laying the groundwork for future contracts and projects. In addition, the expertise in-office will raise the knowledge level of all Coastal staff, and will provide ad-hoc support and advice for other projects and programs. Last, the initial investment in a Coastal Geologist will likely establish this position beyond the enhancement period. ISGS has had an interest in re-establishing the Coastal Geologist position, and Coastal Program support is facilitating their interest and helping to broaden their Department's breadth of expertise.

IV. **Benefits to Coastal Management**

Discuss the anticipated effect of the strategy, including the scope and value of the strategy, in advancing improvements in the CMP and coastal management, in general.

The anticipated effects of creating a shoreline erosion and accretion program include improved coordination and cooperation among shoreline managers; reduced costs for coastal municipalities managing their shorelines; sustainable long-term solutions to eroding shorelines; and improved shoreline habitats, both terrestrial and aquatic. This strategy will benefit the Coastal Management Program because there is a serious need for addressing community concerns and taking a broader perspective of the entire shoreline and the ICMP is uniquely positioned to assist in this way. Federal, state, and local elected officials are all aware of the need for better management of the shoreline in order to maintain and enhance recreation, tourism and sustainable development. ICMP can provide a high-value service to these communities by working on this issue as a region and emphasizing cooperation and communication for problem solving. Establishing a regional dialogue on coastal erosion and accretion may open the door for continued communication and coordination on other coastal

issues that would further regional goals for recreation, resource management and sustainable costal development.

V. Likelihood of Success

Discuss the likelihood of attaining the strategy goal and program change (if not part of the strategy goal) during the five-year assessment cycle or at a later date. Address the nature and degree of support for pursuing the strategy and the proposed program change and the specific actions the state or territory will undertake to maintain or build future support for achieving and implementing the program change, including education and outreach activities.

The likelihood of achieving success through this strategy is high. The initial goals of establishing program framework, hiring a Coastal Geologist, and conducting solution-driven research are expected to be successful during the five-year assessment cycle. It is difficult to determine if subsequent goals of implementing regional solutions to shoreline erosion and accretion will be met within the enhancement period or in subsequent years. There are a number of unknown factors that will affect the timeframe necessary to achieve the goal. We are currently uncertain about the extent of data needs because Illinois currently lacks the coastal expertise needed to address these issues. Creating a shoreline erosion and accretion program framework and reestablishing coastal geology expertise is essential to work toward the strategy goal. Using an adaptive management strategy in conjunction with a robust outreach and engagement strategy with coastal communities will help the region, and individual municipalities and managers with relevant, high-quality data, and a forum for multi-directional communication and coordination. Program changes such as memoranda of understanding, consideration of updates to administrative rules, ordinances, or new program elements will emerge from community-based needs and decisions based on sound science and research.

ICMP plans to continue work on this fundamental program need by building a base of support of local and regional legislators, local elected officials, and industrial, recreational, and resource-based interest group stakeholders. Targeted education and outreach are critical during this enhancement period and beyond to assure the best success at achieving the strategy goals.

VI. Strategy Work Plan

Using the template below, provide a general work plan that includes the major steps that will lead toward or achieve a program change or implement a previously achieved program change. If the state intends to fund implementation activities for the proposed program change, describe those in the plan as well. The plan should identify a schedule for completing the strategy and include major projected milestones (key products, deliverables, activities, and decisions) and budget estimates. If an activity will span two or more years, it can be combined into one entry (i.e., Years 2-3 rather than Year 2 and then Year 3). While the annual milestones are a useful guide to ensure the strategy remains on track, OCRM recognizes that they may change somewhat over the course of the five-year strategy due to unforeseen circumstances. The same holds true for the annual budget estimates. Further detailing and adjustment of annual activities, milestones, and budgets will be determined through the annual cooperative agreement negotiation process.

Strategy Goal: To improve management of shoreline erosion and accretion issues through new coastal programs, coordinated management actions, and coastal restoration activities.

Total Years: 5

Total Budget: \$550,000

Year(s): 1

Description of activities:

- Hire a Coastal Geologist (the position may be filled prior to the start of the 309 Strategy)
- Coordinate with other research and management entities, other agencies, and local governmental entities
- Establish coastal working group
- Begin development of Illinois Coastal database
- Provide guidance on sand management at Illinois Beach State Park
- Determine information gaps; identify research needs
- Initiate studies to address data gaps

Major Milestone(s): Hire Coastal Geologist; develop initial workplan; develop database, complete literature review, initiate studies

Budget: \$110,000

Year(s): 2-5

Description of activities:

- Continue research and initiate new studies as needed
- Apply for Projects of Special Merit
- Continue coordination work with other agencies, land owners, local governments; continue providing assistance on littoral drift issues; continue engagement with coastal working group
- Continue coordination with Illinois Beach State Park
- Perform targeted education and outreach
- Develop new program elements identified as priorities through research. This may include new or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs, memoranda of understanding, administrative rules, ordinances
- Provide technical support to land managers and municipalities for local project implementation
- Implement projects as feasible
- Assess program success and use an adaptive management approach

Major Milestone(s): Completion of research studies, development of education and outreach tools, implementation of projects

Budget: \$440,000

Fiscal and Technical Needs VII.

A. Fiscal Needs: If 309 funding is not sufficient to carry out the proposed strategy, identify additional funding needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to secure additional state funds from the legislature and/or from other sources to support this strategy.

ICMP has not previously sought funds for this strategy, however, we are currently exploring options to fund the first year of the coastal geologist's salary from other funds. ISGS will contribute to funding towards the salary. Additional funding needs will be addressed through 306 funds and partnership opportunities.

B. Technical Needs: If the state does not possess the technical knowledge, skills, or equipment to carry out all or part of the proposed strategy, identify these needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to obtain the trained personnel or equipment needed (for example, through agreements with other state agencies).

ICMP would need to hire a coastal geologist and conduct technical studies that may require specialized equipment. ICMP is currently in discussions with ISGS to jointly fund a coastal geologist position. We have also been coordinating with USACE on the sediment budget study.

VIII. Projects of Special Merit

Projects of Special Merit may include additional studies that would not be covered by the proposed budget as well as projects focused on erosion prevention at Illinois Beach State Park. It is expected that details for Projects of Special Merit would be developed by the Coastal Geologist.

5-Year Budget Summary by Strategy

Coastal Hazards - Shoreline Erosion and Accretion

Strategy	Year 1 Funding	Year 2 Funding	Year 3 Funding	Year 4 Funding	Year 5 Funding	Total Funding
Coastal Geologist	\$60,000	\$60,000	\$60,000	\$60,000	\$60,000	\$300,000
Research/Studies	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$250,000
Total Funding	\$110,000	\$110,000	\$110,000	\$110,000	\$110,000	\$550,000

Coastal Hazards - Ravine Management Program

1.	Issue Area(s) The proposed strategy or implementation activities will support the following high-priority enhancement areas (check all that apply): Aquaculture Energy & Government Facility Siting Wetlands Coastal Hazards Marine Debris Ocean/Great Lakes Resources Special Area Management Planning
II.	Strategy Description
A.	The proposed strategy will lead to, or implement, the following types of program changes (check all that apply): A change to coastal zone boundaries; New or revised authorities, including statutes, regulations, enforceable policies, administrative decisions, executive orders, and memoranda of agreement/understanding; New or revised local coastal programs and implementing ordinances; New or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs; New or revised special area management plans (SAMP) or plans for areas of particular concern (APC) including enforceable policies and other necessary implementation mechanisms or criteria and procedures for designating and managing APCs; and, New or revised guidelines, procedures, and policy documents which are formally adopted by a state or territory and provide specific interpretations of enforceable CZM program policies to applicants, local government, and other agencies that will result in meaningful improvements in coastal resource management.
	Strategy Goal:
pr	ate the goal of the strategy for the five-year assessment period. The goal should be the specific rogram change to be achieved or be a statement describing the results of the project with the spectation that achieving the goal would eventually lead to a program change.
D	evelop a ravine management program plan for the Illinois Coastal Management Program (ICMP).
C.	Describe the proposed strategy and how the strategy will lead to and/or implement the program changes selected above. If the strategy will only involve implementation activities, briefly describe the program change that has already been adopted, and how the proposed activities will further that program change. (Note that implementation strategies are not to exceed two years.)
pr er	MP proposes developing a ravine management program that will assess current conditions, set iorities for future education, outreach and management and begin stakeholder and partner agagement. As part of the ravine management strategy, ICMP would undertake a study to gain a etter understanding of the status of ravine management. The study would:

• gather information on past and current management efforts undertaken by various

organizations and communities

- gather information on existing policies and ordinances
- provide information on best management practices (BMPs) and on implementing ravine strategies
- assess vulnerability of ravines to coastal hazards
- prioritize ravines in greatest need for stormwater and erosion control
- identify existing gaps in ravine management
- provide recommendations for education, outreach, and management, and identify best opportunities for ICMP to become involved

Once the study is complete, ICMP would engage a consultant to facilitate outreach to landowners and other agencies to promote education about the topic.

III. **Needs and Gaps Addressed**

Identify what priority needs and gaps the strategy addresses and explain why the proposed program change or implementation activities are the most appropriate means to address the priority needs and gaps. This discussion should reference the key findings of the assessment and explain how the strategy addresses those findings.

Ravines are an important and unique feature in the northern part of the Illinois coastal zone. There are 47 ravines located between Winnetka and the Wisconsin border. The steep-sided ravines support groundwater-fed growing conditions and microclimates and offer habitat for unique communities of plants and animals. The topography and positioning of the ravine systems provide the right conditions for several threatened and endangered northern plant and tree species rarely found this far south. Managing the ravines to address the stormwater runoff and the erosion associated with it is a significant challenge in the Illinois coastal zone, especially for the ravines surrounded by urban development.

Ravine management has been identified by ICMP stakeholders as a high priority during the development of the Illinois Lake Michigan Implementation Plan (ILMIP). Ravine management efforts have been ongoing by some municipalities within the coastal zone as well as by some private landowners. Many organizations have also been involved in promoting and implementing ravine management in the coastal zone. However, there are multiple ravines lacking management and many of them are faced with severe erosion and habitat degradation. The ravine research, investigations and assessments will build upon previous and ongoing efforts and provide ICMP and partners involved in ravine management with current status of ravine efforts, and will provide much-needed information on which ravines should be prioritized for ICMP's involvement. The Ravine Management Program will address the needs identified in the plan.

IV. **Benefits to Coastal Management**

Discuss the anticipated effect of the strategy, including the scope and value of the strategy, in advancing improvements in the CMP and coastal management, in general.

Ravines are a unique feature of the coastal zone. If not addressed, stormwater and erosion issues lead to severe degradation of the ravine habitat and contribute to Lake Michigan water quality degradation. Work has been ongoing in some ravines to properly manage the habitat, but other ravines are in need of management actions. This strategy will provide ICMP with information on the current status of the ravines and it will guide ICMP's future actions on the ravines, such as allocation of funds toward priority ravine projects. This work will also address priorities identified as part of ILMIP to assess vulnerability of the ravine system, help communities manage the ravines, and provide education and assistance to landowners.

٧. **Likelihood of Success**

Discuss the likelihood of attaining the strategy goal and program change (if not part of the strategy goal) during the five-year assessment cycle or at a later date. Address the nature and degree of support for pursuing the strategy and the proposed program change and the specific actions the state or territory will undertake to maintain or build future support for achieving and implementing the program change, including education and outreach activities.

There is a high likelihood of success for creation of the Ravine Management Program. ICMP will engage a qualified contractor to research and develop a plan and then begin implementation of the program. We will also work with organizations already engaged in ravine management, such as the Alliance for the Great Lakes and the Park District of Highland Park.

VI. **Strategy Work Plan**

Using the template below, provide a general work plan that includes the major steps that will lead toward or achieve a program change or implement a previously achieved program change. If the state intends to fund implementation activities for the proposed program change, describe those in the plan as well. The plan should identify a schedule for completing the strategy and include major projected milestones (key products, deliverables, activities, and decisions) and budget estimates. If an activity will span two or more years, it can be combined into one entry (i.e., Years 2-3 rather than Year 2 and then Year 3). While the annual milestones are a useful guide to ensure the strategy remains on track, OCRM recognizes that they may change somewhat over the course of the five-year strategy unforeseen circumstances. The same holds true for the annual budget estimates. Further detailing and adjustment of annual activities, milestones, and budgets will be determined through the annual cooperative agreement negotiation process.

Strategy Goal: Develop a ravine management program for the Illinois Coastal Management Program

(ICMP). **Total Years:** 4

Total Budget: \$135,000

Year(s): 1-2

Description of activities:

- Develop RFP
- Hire qualified consultant to conduct research and develop ravine management plan
- Literature Research, plan review
- Coordination with other agencies
- Development of ravine management plan

Major Milestone(s): Engage qualified contractor, develop plan

Budget: \$75,000

Year(s): 3-4

Description of activities:

- Implement Ravine Management Program through outreach, education, and project support.
- Coordination with local governmental entities

Major Milestone(s): Engage consultant for outreach and implementation; complete strategic outreach to communities, organizations and landowners: provide individual ravine management plans and project support to high priority ravines.

Budget: \$60,000

VII. Fiscal and Technical Needs

A. Fiscal Needs: If 309 funding is not sufficient to carry out the proposed strategy, identify additional funding needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to secure additional state funds from the legislature and/or from other sources to support this strategy.

ICMP has not previously sought funds for this strategy, as it is beyond what we would be able to fund through standard Section 306 resources. We do not anticipate additional funding needs beyond those outlined in this 309 plan.

B. Technical Needs: If the state does not possess the technical knowledge, skills, or equipment to carry out all or part of the proposed strategy, identify these needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to obtain the trained personnel or equipment needed (for example, through agreements with other state agencies).

ICMP would engage a qualified contractor to develop the Ravine Management Plan and implement the program. At this time, ICMP does not have sufficient staff levels and staff expertise to handle the development of the plan in-house. ICMP is working with the Illinois State Geological Survey to develop a Coastal Geologist position as a joint appointment between two agencies. Once hired, the coastal geologist would be involved in erosion management in the ravines.

VIII. Projects of Special Merit

No Projects of Special Merit are planned for this strategy at this time.

5-Year Budget Summary by Strategy

Coastal Hazards - Ravine Management Program

Strategy	Year 1 Funding	Year 2 Funding	Year 3 Funding	Year 4 Funding	Year 5 Funding	Total Funding
Ravine Management Plan	\$25,000	\$50,000				\$75,000
Program Implementation			\$30,000	\$30,000		\$60,000
Total Funding	\$25,000	\$50,000	\$30,000	\$30,000		\$135,000

Coastal Hazards - Prioritizing Wetlands

I.	Issue Area(s) The proposed strategy or implementation activities will support the following high- priority enhancement areas (check all that apply): Aquaculture Energy & Government Facility Siting Coastal Hazards Marine Debris Ocean/Great Lakes Resources Public Access Special Area Management Planning
I.	Strategy Description
A.	The proposed strategy will lead to, or implement, the following types of program changes (check all that apply): A change to coastal zone boundaries; New or revised authorities, including statutes, regulations, enforceable policies, administrative decisions, executive orders, and memoranda of agreement/understanding; New or revised local coastal programs and implementing ordinances; New or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs; New or revised special area management plans (SAMP) or plans for areas of particular concern (APC) including enforceable policies and other necessary implementation mechanisms or criteria and procedures for designating and managing APCs; and, New or revised guidelines, procedures, and policy documents which are formally adopted by a state or territory and provide specific interpretations of enforceable CZM program policies to applicants, local government, and other agencies that will result in meaningful improvements in coastal resource management.
B.	State the goal of the strategy for the five-year assessment period. The goal should be the specific program change to be achieved or be a statement describing the results of the project with the expectation that achieving the goal would eventually lead to a program change. The goal of the Prioritizing Wetlands strategy is to complete characterization and analysis of wetlands in the Illinois Coastal Zone. Wetlands will be prioritized for their potential use in managing local surface runoff before it enters storm sewers, and also for protecting high quality coastal wetlands from damaging effects for stormwater runoff. This prioritization will guide potential land acquisition projects, land management goals, and potentially lead to memoranda of understanding for improving stormwater management both using and protecting wetlands.
C.	Describe the proposed strategy and how the strategy will lead to and/or implement the program changes selected above. If the strategy will only involve implementation activities, briefly describe the program change that has already been adopted, and how the proposed activities will further that program change. (Note that implementation strategies are not to exceed two years.)
	Non-overbank flooding due to inadequate stormwater management systems is a major concern

in the coastal zone. Diverting rain water and snowmelt into natural systems before it would

enter grey infrastructure such as storm sewers or detention basins has the potential to improve coastal resiliency. The proposed strategy will involve establishing a flexible set of criteria to prioritize wetlands for use in stormwater management. These criteria will be developed using current literature and best practices for stormwater management as a first step. Illinois Coastal Management Program (ICMP) and a consultant will convene a group of wetland experts, land managers, stormwater managers, and other specialists to review current information and define a system for identifying key characteristics of individual wetlands, including existing input of local surface runoff, and prioritizing them for specific use in, or protection from stormwater management. The group may also identify a prioritization strategy for wetland protection and restoration activities, or other goals as needed.

ICMP will work with partners or contractors to use current inventory data, as available (e.g. Lake County Wetland Inventory), to develop an inventory and spatial database of all existing wetlands within the Illinois Coastal Zone that will include fundamental characteristics of wetlands within the Coastal Zone. Existing data for individual wetlands will be gathered from a variety of sources including the Illinois Natural Areas Inventory, National Wetlands Inventory, Lake County Wetland inventory, research literature, local studies, etc. Additional data needed to complete the characterization for the wetlands will be collected through field work and ground-truthing.

The wetland characterizations will be analyzed through the prioritization criteria identified by experts and then reviewed for accuracy, outcomes and any calibration necessary. Once the group of experts is satisfied with the resulting prioritization, ICMP will develop outreach strategies to landowners and land managers to present them with the results of the prioritization process. Additional program elements may be needed to assist communities or landowners on how to reduce coastal hazards through incorporating these wetlands into comprehensive green infrastructure and stormwater management strategies. The inventory will also be used to help ICMP prioritize wetland protection and restoration needs that will guide program funding decisions. Guidance on additional technical resources and funding opportunities will also be provided.

Ultimately the inventory and characterization will give ICMP a spatial database and a better understanding of the distribution and current condition of wetlands throughout the coastal zone and their potential value in surface runoff management. This is a fundamental need for understanding critical natural resources along the coast and will undoubtedly provide many more uses than described for this strategy.

III. Needs and Gaps Addressed

Identify what priority needs and gaps the strategy addresses and explain why the proposed program change or implementation activities are the most appropriate means to address the priority needs and gaps. This discussion should reference the key findings of the assessment and explain how the strategy addresses those findings.

As identified in the Phase I and II assessments, stormwater management and flooding are an issue throughout the coastal zone. Stormwater management is an increasing challenge in the urban environment. The frequency of intense storm events is increasing and the current "grey" stormwater infrastructure is inadequate to handle such high volumes in short time periods. Options to capture water away from traditional stormwater systems and allow for slow infiltration through more natural substrates are becoming more accepted and they provide additional

aesthetic, ecological, and societal benefits. There is a broad and growing interest in using green infrastructure to better manage our ever- increasing stormwater, and wetlands can provide a natural, existing green infrastructure matrix in some cases. There is also a need to protect some of the highest quality coastal wetlands from degradation from stormwater runoff, and this inventory will provide a roadmap to better coastal wetland management.

Currently, the ICMP does not have an up-to-date, accurate database of wetland resources within the coastal zone. While some communities already incorporate wetlands into green infrastructure and stormwater plans, this coastal zone database will be critical to incorporating existing or potential wetland areas into all coastal community green infrastructure plans, and assisting municipalities with flooding and stormwater issues. This strategy addresses the need by compiling existing data into a local database and supplementing it with field work and ground truthing to ensure accuracy. Developing the prioritization criteria is essential for effectively identifying and utilizing existing wetland resources for stormwater management.

IV. **Benefits to Coastal Management**

Discuss the anticipated effect of the strategy, including the scope and value of the strategy, in advancing improvements in the CMP and coastal management, in general.

This strategy will provide ICMP with critical decision-making tools to assist local communities in making smart choices when dealing with stormwater management. Currently ICMP does not have adequate wetland data to present to communities that have stormwater issues. A prioritized wetland database will allow ICMP to identify existing wetland features in order to assess their suitability for local stormwater management needs, and also identify high quality coastal wetlands that should be protected from stormwater runoff. In addition, this data will allow ICMP to customize recommendations to promote the best possible uses of their coastal resources. The data will provide an opportunity to use spatial analysis tools to elucidate larger scale planning options that would not be apparent without a regional dataset. Improvements in stormwater management in the coastal zone could provide significant benefits to Lake Michigan nearshore water quality, reductions in localized flooding, improved groundwater quality, and an increased appreciation for wetland resources.

٧. **Likelihood of Success**

Discuss the likelihood of attaining the strategy goal and program change (if not part of the strategy goal) during the five-year assessment cycle or at a later date. Address the nature and degree of support for pursuing the strategy and the proposed program change and the specific actions the state or territory will undertake to maintain or build future support for achieving and implementing the program change, including education and outreach activities.

There is a high likelihood of success because there is much data already available and there are good tools and methods for filling in needs and gaps. ICMP will engage qualified contractors to assist with wetland inventory and will engage multiple experts to develop prioritization criteria. ICMP expects that many partners and stakeholders will be very supportive of this project. ICMP will use this information in our continuing outreach and education programming.

VI. Strategy Work Plan

Using the template below, provide a general work plan that includes the major steps that will lead toward or achieve a program change or implement a previously achieved program change. If the state intends to fund implementation activities for the proposed program change, describe those in the plan as well. The plan should identify a schedule for completing the strategy and include major projected milestones (key products, deliverables, activities, and decisions) and budget estimates. If an activity will span two or more years, it can be combined into one entry (i.e., Years 2-3 rather than Year 2 and then Year 3). While the annual milestones are a useful guide to ensure the strategy remains on track, OCRM recognizes that they may change somewhat over the course of the five-year strategy unforeseen circumstances. The same holds true for the annual budget estimates. Further detailing and adjustment of annual activities, milestones, and budgets will be determined through the annual cooperative agreement negotiation process.

Strategy Goal: The goal of the Prioritizing Wetlands strategy is complete characterization and analysis of wetlands in the Illinois Coastal Zone and prioritization for their use in managing stormwater runoff. This prioritization will guide potential land acquisition projects, land management goals, and potentially lead to memoranda of understanding for improving stormwater management using wetlands.

Total Years: 4

Total Budget: \$115,000

Year(s): 1-2

Description of activities:

- Develop RFP
- Engage contractor(s)
- Literature review
- Convene experts and define a system for identifying key data on individual wetlands which would be needed to prioritize them for specific use in managing runoff from adjacent land
- Wetland inventory and characterization, including field work and ground-truthing
- Develop a database with wetland information
- Wetland prioritization

Major Milestone(s): Complete wetland inventory, prioritize wetlands for acquisition, restoration, and use in stormwater management

Budget: \$75,000

Year(s): 3-4

Description of activities:

- Develop outreach strategies
- Develop outreach materials
- Provide prioritized wetlands information to other groups and municipalities
- Assist municipalities with incorporating prioritized wetlands into stormwater management

Major Milestone(s): Incorporate existing or potential wetland areas into community green infrastructure plans

Budget: \$40,000

VII. Fiscal and Technical Needs

A. Fiscal Needs: If 309 funding is not sufficient to carry out the proposed strategy, identify additional funding needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to secure additional state funds from the legislature and/or from other sources to support this strategy.

ICMP has not previously sought funds for this strategy, as it is beyond what we would be able to fund through standard Section 306 resources. We do not anticipate additional funding needs beyond those outlined in this 309 plan.

B. Technical Needs: If the state does not possess the technical knowledge, skills, or equipment to carry out all or part of the proposed strategy, identify these needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to obtain the trained personnel or equipment needed (for example, through agreements with other state agencies).

ICMP does not currently have a staff GIS person who could perform the inventory process. Other ICMP staff members possess some of the technical expertise and skills, but a contractor will be used in coordination with other key experts to assure broader considerations and viewpoints.

VIII. Projects of Special Merit

No projects of special merit are planned at this point for this strategy. As the prioritization process develops, ICMP may apply for projects of special merit to support stormwater management activities at priority wetlands.

5-Year Budget Summary by Strategy

Coastal Hazards - Prioritizing Wetlands

Strategy	Year 1 Funding	Year 2 Funding	Year 3 Funding	Year 4 Funding	Year 5 Funding	Total Funding
Inventory and prioritization	\$40,000	\$35,000				\$75,000
Outreach			\$20,000	\$20,000		\$40,000
Total Funding	\$40,000	\$35,000	\$20,000	\$20,000		\$115,000

Coastal Hazards - Groundwater Hydrology

I.	Issue Area(s) The proposed strategy or implementation activities will support the following high-						
	priority enhancement areas (check all that apply): Aquaculture Energy & Government Facility Siting Coastal Hazards Ocean/Great Lakes Resources Special Area Management Planning Cumulative and Secondary Impacts Wetlands Marine Debris Public Access						
II.	Strategy Description						
A.	The proposed strategy will lead to, or implement, the following types of program changes (check all that apply): A change to coastal zone boundaries; New or revised authorities, including statutes, regulations, enforceable policies, administrative decisions, executive orders, and memoranda of agreement/understanding; New or revised local coastal programs and implementing ordinances; New or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs; New or revised special area management plans (SAMP) or plans for areas of particular concern (APC) including enforceable policies and other necessary implementation mechanisms or criteria and procedures for designating and managing APCs; and, New or revised guidelines, procedures, and policy documents which are formally adopted by a state or territory and provide specific interpretations of enforceable CZM program policies to applicants, local government, and other agencies that will result in meaningful improvements in coastal resource management.						
E	State the goal of the strategy for the five-year assessment period. The goal should be the specific program change to be achieved or be a statement describing the results of the project with the expectation that achieving the goal would eventually lead to a program change. The goal of this strategy is to improve our understanding of groundwater hydrology and how it interacts with the Lake Michigan nearshore area, in order to refine the Coastal Zone boundary as needed and focus resources and efforts most effectively.						
C.	Describe the proposed strategy and how the strategy will lead to and/or implement the program changes selected above. If the strategy will only involve implementation activities, briefly describe the program change that has already been adopted, and how the proposed activities will further that program change. (Note that implementation strategies are not to exceed two years.)						
	The proposed strategy will involve a groundwater hydrologic assessment of the Calumet region – possibly expanding to other parts of the Illinois Coastal Zone - to better understand how and where groundwater flows within the Lake Michigan watershed. Currently, the Illinois Coastal Zone Boundary is based on the understanding that the reversal of the Chicago and Calumet						

Rivers carries much of the surface runoff from the Chicagoland region to the Mississippi watershed because of the extensive system of sewers, tunnels and other drainage modifications implemented through the course of our urban development. However, there is very little information available to elucidate the extent of the groundwater basin for Lake Michigan so we cannot ascertain where water that infiltrates the ground actually contributes to Lake Michigan.

This is particularly relevant because there is a broad and growing interest in the use of green infrastructure to better manage our ever-increasing stormwater. The frequency of intense storm events is increasing and current "grey" stormwater infrastructure is inadequate to handle such high volumes in short time periods. Options to capture water away from traditional stormwater systems and allow for slow infiltration through more natural substrates are becoming more accepted and they provide additional aesthetic, ecological, and societal benefits.

The proposed strategy will improve our understanding of how groundwater infiltration may impact Lake Michigan. Illinois groundwater may still be an important contribution to the Lake Michigan system, but the extent and amount is unknown. Initially the strategy will focus on the Calumet region as there is a strong movement in the region to address stormwater and flooding issues through a variety of strategies including increased infiltration.

The strategy will involve establishing a contract with a qualified hydrologist or firm that will work with the Illinois Coastal Management Program (ICMP) to develop a Calumet region groundwater study beginning with a literature review and assessment of currently available data. Data considerations will influence the geographic extent of this study. Strategy development will also include key partners involved in water management such as Metropolitan Water Reclamation District; Chicago Dept. of Water Management; Metropolitan Planning Council, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, and others. ICMP in cooperation with other local experts and agencies will assess groundwater investigation results quarterly to determine progress and adjust research strategy as needed.

III. **Needs and Gaps Addressed**

Identify what priority needs and gaps the strategy addresses and explain why the proposed program change or implementation activities are the most appropriate means to address the priority needs and gaps. This discussion should reference the key findings of the assessment and explain how the strategy addresses those findings.

There is a significant gap in understanding the groundwater system that interacts with Lake Michigan in Illinois. The potential program change would allow the ICMP to work within a more accurate Coastal Zone boundary with a greater impact on the Lake Michigan coast. There is a great interest in increasing the use of green infrastructure use for stormwater management. This has been identified by our program and our stakeholders and is a high priority throughout the coastal zone. We have been working to promote green infrastructure use, and this strategy will allow a better targeting of areas that should be prioritized for green infrastructure. Improving the accuracy of the Coastal Zone boundary would allow the program to focus efforts in areas that will best benefit Lake Michigan and the coast.

IV. **Benefits to Coastal Management**

Discuss the anticipated effect of the strategy, including the scope and value of the strategy, in advancing improvements in the CMP and coastal management, in general.

This strategy will allow our coastal program to understand where and how water is infiltrating to the Lake Michigan system so we can target our programs to the appropriate areas based on sound scientific data. Many communities in the Calumet region suffer from flooding due to stormwater management problems, and polluted runoff affects water quality in the area waterways. Green infrastructure can be used to increase infiltration, decrease flooding, and divert stormwater away from already overloaded storm drains. Understanding the extent of the groundwater basin will allow us to target programs more effectively. This information would also be used by many other partner agencies to improve and enhance water management in the Lake Michigan Basin. Other added benefits include increasing water into the groundwater basin for better, cleaner recharge for Lake Michigan and a refined coastal zone boundary that allows our program to focus efforts most effectively for the management of the Lake Michigan coast.

V. **Likelihood of Success**

Discuss the likelihood of attaining the strategy goal and program change (if not part of the strategy goal) during the five-year assessment cycle or at a later date. Address the nature and degree of support for pursuing the strategy and the proposed program change and the specific actions the state or territory will undertake to maintain or build future support for achieving and implementing the program change, including education and outreach activities.

The likelihood of success is medium because although the goal is specific, there are many unknowns due to the extremely modified landscape and altered hydrology. The information is knowable but not currently known, and there may be some challenges that could affect the timeframe and the estimated costs. It is not clear exactly how long this research will take to complete for the Calumet, so the program change could occur after the enhancement period. Ideally, ICMP will complete the groundwater hydrology for the entire coastal zone and then submit a program change for the boundary. The Illinois Coastal Program has been very wellreceived and there will be significant support for the results of the strategy research, and any further refinement of the Coastal Zone boundary. The ICMP will continue regular outreach and education with coastal legislators, elected officials, and stakeholders to assure support for the program and that the program is focused on the issues important to our stakeholders.

VI. **Strategy Work Plan**

Using the template below, provide a general work plan that includes the major steps that will lead toward or achieve a program change or implement a previously achieved program change. If the state intends to fund implementation activities for the proposed program change, describe those in the plan as well. The plan should identify a schedule for completing the strategy and include major projected milestones (key products, deliverables, activities, and decisions) and budget estimates. If an activity will span two or more years, it can be combined into one entry (i.e., Years 2-3 rather than Year 2 and then Year 3). While the annual milestones are a useful guide to ensure the strategy remains on track, OCRM recognizes that they may change somewhat over the course of the five-year strategy unforeseen circumstances. The same holds true for the annual budget estimates. Further detailing and adjustment of annual activities,

milestones, and budgets will be determined through the annual cooperative agreement negotiation process.

Strategy Goal: The goal of this strategy is to improve our understanding of groundwater hydrology and how it interacts with the Lake Michigan nearshore area, in order to refine the Coastal Zone boundary as needed and focus resources and efforts most effectively.

Total Years: 5

Total Budget: \$625,000

Year(s): 1-2

Description of activities:

- Create RFP
- Contract with an experienced hydrologist or firm
- Literature review and assessment of currently available data
- Coordination with key partners
- Develop workplan
- Begin groundwater assessment of the Calumet region

Major Milestone(s): Hire a consultant or experienced hydrologist, develop workplan and strategies **Budget:** \$250,000

Year(s): 3-5

Description of activities:

- Project management
- Quarterly assessment of work
- Continued groundwater assessment of the Calumet region
- Potential expansion of the groundwater assessment to other regions in the coastal zone
- Assessment of results, including evaluation of coastal zone boundary
- Dissemination of results
- Prepare documentation for program change (if warranted)

Major Milestone(s): Completion of groundwater assessment for the Calumet, compilation and analysis of results

Budget: \$375,000

VII. Fiscal and Technical Needs

A. Fiscal Needs: If 309 funding is not sufficient to carry out the proposed strategy, identify additional funding needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to secure additional state funds from the legislature and/or from other sources to support this strategy.

Section 309 funding should be sufficient to accomplish this strategy. However, if additional questions could be answered with more detailed data, we will coordinate with other partner agencies and entities that have a strong interest in understanding groundwater and stormwater movement in the Lake Michigan basin.

B. Technical Needs: If the state does not possess the technical knowledge, skills, or equipment to carry out all or part of the proposed strategy, identify these needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to obtain the trained personnel or equipment needed (for example, through agreements with other state agencies).

ICMP does not have the technical knowledge, skills, or equipment to fulfill the needs of this strategy, so we have planned most of the technical work to be done contractually.

VIII. **Projects of Special Merit**

No Projects of Special Merit are planned at this time.

5-Year Budget Summary by Strategy

Coastal Hazards - Groundwater Hydrology Strategy

Strategy	Year 1 Funding	Year 2 Funding	Year 3 Funding	Year 4 Funding	Year 5 Funding	Total Funding
Researcher/consulting firm	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$250,000
Groundwater assessment	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$75,000	\$375,000
Total Funding	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$125,000	\$625,000

Public Access Plan - Inventory and Needs Assessment

I.	Issue Area(s) The proposed strategy or implementation activities will support the following high-
	priority enhancement areas (check all that apply): Aquaculture Energy & Government Facility Siting Coastal Hazards Ocean/Great Lakes Resources Special Area Management Planning Cumulative and Secondary Impacts Wetlands Marine Debris Public Access
II.	Strategy Description
A.	The proposed strategy will lead to, or implement, the following types of program changes (check all that apply): A change to coastal zone boundaries; New or revised authorities, including statutes, regulations, enforceable policies, administrative decisions, executive orders, and memoranda of agreement/understanding; New or revised local coastal programs and implementing ordinances; New or revised coastal land acquisition, management, and restoration programs; New or revised special area management plans (SAMP) or plans for areas of particular concern (APC) including enforceable policies and other necessary implementation mechanisms or criteria and procedures for designating and managing APCs; and, New or revised guidelines, procedures, and policy documents which are formally adopted by a state or territory and provide specific interpretations of enforceable CZM program policies to applicants, local government, and other agencies that will result in meaningful improvements in coastal resource management.
В.	Strategy Goal: State the goal of the strategy for the five-year assessment period. The goal should be the specific program change to be achieved or be a statement describing the results of the project with the expectation that achieving the goal would eventually lead to a program change. The goal of the Public Access strategy is to develop a public access plan. Information gathered during the process will guide ICMP decisions on public access and provide information that will be used by IDNR and incorporated into the State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. This strategy will also inform the work of local and regional governments so they can incorporate identified needs and solutions into their planning process and will inform the need for policy changes related to public access along the coast.
C.	Describe the proposed strategy and how the strategy will lead to and/or implement the program changes selected above. If the strategy will only involve implementation activities, briefly describe the program change that has already been adopted, and how the proposed activities will further that program change. (Note that implementation strategies are not to exceed two years.)

As part of the development of the Public Access Plan, ICMP will develop a comprehensive inventory of public access and recreation resources followed by an assessment of user needs and perceptions. The inventory and needs assessment will provide information on gaps and barriers to access that exist in the coastal zone. The inventory will include a review of existing public access GIS information, followed by field work to fill in data gaps. A standard inventory sheet will be developed to gather information about level of access and site amenities, and data will be entered into GIS database. The inventory will encompass both land and water based recreational activities. Besides assessment of sites and amenities, the inventory phase may also include assessments of trails and trail connections, transportation options, parking, fees, signage and wayfinding, and accessibility for seniors and persons with a disability.

The needs assessment will determine the level to which current public access opportunities are serving the public, and identify user needs, perceptions, and existing or emerging issues. To reach a broad constituency, the assessment will utilize a variety of approaches that may include surveys, individual interviews, focus group meetings, and public meetings.

This project will improve the information available to the ICMP and will directly inform the allocation of ICMP resources towards public access opportunities. The coastal assessment will be incorporated into the Statewide Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, which informs the actions of IDNR as a whole. Information from the assessment will be utilized at the state sites located within the coastal zone - Illinois Beach State Park and William Powers State Recreation Area – and will be of paramount importance for informing development of any new land acquisitions. Information from this project may also inform IDNR public access and recreation grant funding programs. The information on needs will be provided to coastal municipalities, counties, and other organizations working on access and recreation. ICMP staff will work with municipalities – especially those that are undergoing a planning process or ordinance update process - on incorporating improvements to public access that were identified during the assessment.

In the future, the information may lead to a development of a comprehensive access guide available online.

III. **Needs and Gaps Addressed**

Identify what priority needs and gaps the strategy addresses and explain why the proposed program change or implementation activities are the most appropriate means to address the priority needs and gaps. This discussion should reference the key findings of the assessment and explain how the strategy addresses those findings.

As identified in the assessment, there is a lack of comprehensive information sources that would provide a thorough overview of public access in the coastal zone. Various types of information can be found on websites for municipalities or local park districts, but the level of information and its usefulness vary. The information is scattered and does not lend itself to regional planning, nor does it allow ICMP to fully understand the emerging issues that the public may be dealing with. The population living in the coastal zone is projected to increase, thus potentially increasing demand on the resources and demand for access. To accommodate current and future needs, this strategy aims to improve

access and connectivity; identify additional public access opportunities; and manage existing coastal access to meet the needs of the coastal residents and visitors while protecting natural resources.

The two state sites located in the coastal zone offer a variety of recreational opportunities. However, the sites do not have access-focused management plans. Information gathered from the inventory and the assessment will be used by the IDNR staff in their decision making regarding public access. In addition, IDNR continues to pursue land acquisition opportunities within the coastal zone in the vicinity of Wm. Powers State Recreation Area and Illinois Beach State Park. The information gathered from the inventory and needs assessment will be a useful for determining best uses for any new sites.

IV. **Benefits to Coastal Management**

Discuss the anticipated effect of the strategy, including the scope and value of the strategy, in advancing improvements in the CMP and coastal management, in general.

The inventory and needs assessment would be a first step towards providing a detailed look at the public access opportunities, their distribution throughout the coastal zone, and barriers to access. The needs assessment would gather public input on issues related to current and future public access challenges and opportunities in the coastal area. This will provide a direct benefit to ICMP, land managers, park districts, and other agencies involved with public access and recreation. This project will allow for improved regional planning and may also inform IDNR on issues of public rights of access along the shore of Lake Michigan.

This strategy will also help ICMP toward implementing a stakeholder identified priority of linking public transportation, hiking and biking trails, and water trails to provide multimodal recreational access.

٧. **Likelihood of Success**

Discuss the likelihood of attaining the strategy goal and program change (if not part of the strategy goal) during the five-year assessment cycle or at a later date. Address the nature and degree of support for pursuing the strategy and the proposed program change and the specific actions the state or territory will undertake to maintain or build future support for achieving and implementing the program change, including education and outreach activities.

This project has a high likelihood of success. ICMP will hire a contractor to perform both the inventory and the needs assessment and to compile the information into a Public Access Plan. ICMP currently provides grant funds for planning efforts connected to access, and also directs 306 funds towards various habitat and recreational tasks at the two state sites within the coastal zone. Once the data acquisition phase is complete, ICMP will use the information to inform actions and funding decisions of our own program as well as provide the information to IDNR for management of the state sites within the costal boundary. ICMP also expects to be involved in the development and programming at new acquisition sites with the information gathered during the assessment informing the direction and management of the site.

Many municipalities are undertaking various planning efforts in the coastal zone, many of which have a recreation and public access component. ICMP will work with municipalities during their planning process to address needs identified as part of the assessment.

VI. Strategy Work Plan

Using the template below, provide a general work plan that includes the major steps that will lead toward or achieve a program change or implement a previously achieved program change. If the state intends to fund implementation activities for the proposed program change, describe those in the plan as well. The plan should identify a schedule for completing the strategy and include major projected milestones (key products, deliverables, activities, and decisions) and budget estimates. If an activity will span two or more years, it can be combined into one entry (i.e., Years 2-3 rather than Year 2 and then Year 3). While the annual milestones are a useful guide to ensure the strategy remains on track, OCRM recognizes that they may change somewhat over the course of the five-year strategy unforeseen circumstances. The same holds true for the annual budget estimates. Further detailing and adjustment of annual activities, milestones, and budgets will be determined through the annual cooperative agreement negotiation process.

Strategy Goal: The goal of the Public Access strategy is to gather data that will guide ICMP decisions on public access and provide information that will be used by IDNR and incorporated into the State Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP). This strategy will also inform the work of local municipalities so they can incorporate identified needs and solutions into their planning process and will inform the need for policy changes related to public access along the coast.

Total Years: 3

Total Budget: \$137,500

Year(s): 1

Description of activities:

- Create RFP
- Select qualified contractor
- Develop list of inventory data to collect
- Conduct inventory of current recreational facilities and level of public access
- Compile data in GIS

Major Milestone(s): Compilation of GIS data, completion of inventory

Budget: \$67,500

Year(s): 2

Description of activities:

- Create a project steering group including partners such as the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning, local park districts, county forest preserve districts, municipalities and others
- Create RFP
- Select qualified contractor
- Conduct assessment of needs through surveys, focus groups, public meetings
- Develop Public Access Plan

Major Milestone(s): Compilation of needs, production of Public Access Plan

Budget: \$57,500

Year(s): 3

Description of activities:

- Coordination with other IDNR departments
- Coordination with Illinois Beach State Park and William Powers State Recreation Area
- Outreach to municipalities

Major Milestone(s): Incorporation of data into SCORP, incorporation of needs into municipal plans Budget: \$12,500

Fiscal and Technical Needs

A. Fiscal Needs: If 309 funding is not sufficient to carry out the proposed strategy, identify additional funding needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to secure additional state funds from the legislature and/or from other sources to support this strategy.

ICMP has not previously sought funds for this strategy, as it is beyond what we would be able to fund through standard Section 306 resources. We do not anticipate additional funding needs beyond those outlined in this 309 plan.

B. Technical Needs: If the state does not possess the technical knowledge, skills, or equipment to carry out all or part of the proposed strategy, identify these needs. Provide a brief description of what efforts the CMP has made, if any, to obtain the trained personnel or equipment needed (for example, through agreements with other state agencies).

ICMP does not currently have a staff GIS person who could assist with the inventory process. ICMP would hire a qualified contractor to perform both the inventory and the assessment.

VIII. Projects of Special Merit

No Projects of Special Merit are planned at this time.

5-Year Budget Summary by Strategy

Public Access Plan - Inventory and Needs Assessment

Strategy	Year 1 Funding	Year 2 Funding	Year 3 Funding	Year 4 Funding	Year 5 Funding	Total Funding
Public access inventory and assessment	\$67,500	\$57,500				\$125,000
Outreach (ICMP staff)			\$12,500			\$12,500
Total Funding	\$67,500	\$57,500	\$12,500			\$137,500

Appendix A

Public Comments Submitted for Section 309 Assessment and Strategy and **ICMP Responses**

Mike Prusila **Lake County Stormwater Management Commission** 500 West Winchester Road Libertyville, IL 60048 mprusila@lakecountyil.gov 847-377-7713

Pages 9-12, Coastal Hazards: Related to the entire section, communities in the CMZ that also participate in the National Flood Insurance Program (which is all of the Lake Michigan communities in Lake County except Highwood) *DO* regulate development in Special Flood Hazard Areas (or the 100-year FEMA floodplain). I'm not completely clear if these fall into the "High-Hazard" category described in the objective at the top of page 9. Page 16, Public Access. I concur with the recommendation to work closely with individual municipalities regarding public access to coastal resources, as local policies may vary greatly throughout the CMZ. As a member of the Coastal Advisory Group, I would re-iterate the summary comment regarding the CAG's opinion on the Energy & Gov't. Facility siting section near the bottom of p. 33.

Page 40, Item# 2, "Training/Capacity building" includes the phrase "wetland usage for stormwater" in the explanation. Not sure what this describes, but the direction of stormwater runoff from new development into existing wetlands may be considered a wetland impact, depending on the circumstances. Is this intended to explain the need for more training about the overall value of restoring wetland stormwater functions to the landscape?

P. 62, Prioritizing Wetlands strategy: the Lake County Stormwater Management Commission began developing a Wetland Restoration and Preservation Plan in 2015. The completed suite of products will include a detailed inventory and assessment of all wetlands in Lake County, including those in the CMZ. This data will include information on various wetland fuctions (i.e., water quality enhancement, flood storage, habitat, etc...) that could be used to prioritize wetlands and will be available to the public, including IDNR for use or augmentation of any assessments performed as part of the Prioritizing Wetlands strategy.

ICMP Response – clarifying text related to coastal hazards and wetlands has been added to the document. After further consideration, ICMP decided not to pursue the strategy focused on Energy and Government Facility Siting, and this strategy has been removed from the final document.

Laura Kammin Illinois-Indiana Sea Grant 1101 W. Peabody Dr. Urbana, IL 61801 lkammin@illinois.edu 217-333-1115

Marine Debris, page 17: Resource Characterization: 2. If available, briefly list and summarize the results of any additional state- or territory-specific data or reports on the status and trends or potential impacts from marine debris in the coastal zone since the last assessment. The report currently lists: No additional data. Illinois-Indiana Sea Grant would like to offer additional data to be considered for inclusion in this section. Please see below. Thank you for the opportunity to comment. "In August 2013, Illinois-Indiana Sea Grant conducted a three-day survey of southern Lake Michigan to document the presence and abundance of microplastics. Samples were sent to SUNY at Fredonia for processing and were sorted into three size classes and divided into five categories: fragment, pellet, line, film, and polystyrene foam. Fragments, pellets (including microbeads from personal care products), and line (including microfibers and fishing line) were the most abundant marine debris collected in open water. Documenting the presence of microplastics is only the first step—impacts to the food web must be assessed next. Illinois-Indiana Sea Grant seeks to continue to support research in this area and conducts education and outreach on marine debris issues affecting Lake Michigan."

ICMP Response – text on additional data has been added to the document

Don Wilson Steward - IBSP 1864 E. Skyline Circle Lindenhurst IL 60046 wilsondonaldm@gmail.com 224-639-3158

General Comments - Appears to be a functional document. I would like to see wetlands moved to a high priority. My major concern is the north end of the coast between Waukegan Harbor and north Point Marina. Erosion is very significant. IBSP office is not fair from sliding into the lake. The public beach at IBSP is essentially gone which means the public will move to the beach in the Nature Area further compromising the rare species in the dunes and shore.

Phase I - Shoreline invasive species management, buckthorn, phragmites and sweet clover are taking over beach areas in IBSP and the Waukegan dunes. Shoreline erosion is the Dead River area has significant impact on the water levels in the IBSP Nature Preserve. Phragmites, purple loosestrife, cattails, are impacting rare species in the Nature Preserve drained by Dead River. Loss of public beach will impact rest of IBSP.

Phase II - Public access at IBSP already addressed.

ICMP Response – We recognize that wetland preservation and erosion prevention are important issues in the Coastal Zone. ICMP also recognizes concerns related to invasive species and we have been providing funding and closely working with land managers to address invasive plant management, especially at Illinois Beach State Park.

Joseph M. Schuessler, P.E., CFM **Principal Civil Engineer Engineering Department, Collection Facilities/TARP**

111 East Erie Street Chicago, IL 60611-3154

ph: 312-751-3236, fax: 312-751-4028

In the discussion of Public Access along the North Shore, there is no mention of coordination with the counties. Specifically, Lake County FPD has a fairly large area along the bluff and along the beach near Fort Sheridan and what was once part of Fort Sheridan.

Also, there may be an update to the petcoke issue. I believe I saw recently that the facilities in the City of Chicago are scheduled to be closed in the near future.

ICMP Response – text on coordination with the counties has been added to the document.

Brad Semel Natural Heritage Biologist Illinois Department of Natural Resources 8916 Wilmot Road Spring Grove, IL 60081 630-399-3242

Thank you for the opportunity to comment. The document is extremely well done and clearly a lot of work and collaboration went into this comprehensive work. I especially appreciate the numerous references and recognition of the need to address shoreline erosion at Illinois Beach State Park. Proposal to make tangible strides toward mitigating erosion threats are encouraging. However, I do have two issues that I would like to address and which I feel are critical oversights in the compendium of proposals.

You point out that The National Land Cover Database was used to obtain information for the wetland status and trends table for the coastal zone. The database does offer a historical snapshot that shows changes in wetlands over time. You clearly point out county-wide changes in acres, such as; there was a 2.36% decrease in wetlands in Cook County from 1996 to 2010 and a 0.45% increase in wetlands in Lake County in the same time period. However, the type of data used does not reflect the rapid and significant degradation in QUALITY of those wetlands. Your section on improvements in stormwater management in the coastal zone and implications for providing significant benefits to water quality will certainly benefit the natural wetlands, but clearly that was not the intent in that section. The section on wetlands was marginalized to a moderate need based on perceived "protection" of wetlands through policy and regulation. Indeed, most wetlands will be protected from fill and physical loss. In contrast, for example, at Illinois Beach State Park and Spring Bluff Nature Preserve, hundreds of acres of high quality wetlands have converted from sedge meadow to monotypic stands of cattail (most of which is invasive narrow leaf, or hybrid). LCFPD has spent over a million dollars on vegetation control at Spring Bluff since 2011, while IDNR used just over \$430,000 for vegetation control and hydrology enhancement during

that same time frame. We have focused on eliminating cattail on only 280 acres of the nearly 6,000 acre state park. We were fortunate to have received SOGL funding, but we essentially are gardening on a landscape scale in an effort to maintain these rare, coastal wetland communities. Although IBSP historically had upwards of 55 state-listed species, numbers of extant species has dropped to half of that in recent years due to habitat changes. In sum, I am pleading the case for a major effort to establish long-term funding for annual contracts to assist in the effort to maintain natural areas, and in particular, high quality coastal wetlands.

Lastly, the proposed 309 Energy Facility Siting program recommends that the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) and the Illinois Coastal Management Program (ICMP) collect data necessary to propose rules governing the siting of offshore wind turbines and associated cables. Although detailed reference was made to evaluate aquatic resources, including potential benefits to substrate and habitat creation, I did not see mention of evaluating potential avian impacts. Lake Michigan serves as a major continental migration corridor. Many neo-tropical passerines, as well as raptors, waterfowl, and other species, are known to use the lakeshore and local environs during migration. Wind turbines are well-documented to impact migrating birds, especially in areas of significant concentration. Evaluation of potential avian impacts should be added to this section.

Again, you are to be commended on this very comprehensive evaluation, and I thank you for the opportunity to comment.

ICMP Response – clarifying text related to wetlands has been added to the document. We recognize that preservation of quality of wetlands is important in the Coastal Zone, and we are committing funds from other sources (not Section 309) towards wetland protection. After further consideration, ICMP decided not to pursue the strategy focused on Energy and Government Facility Siting, and this strategy has been removed from the final document.

Tom Chefalo

Lake County Planning Department and Waukegan Harbor CAG member

I read the document and I agree that Coastal Hazards and Public Access should be high priorities of the ICMP but I'm not convinced Energy and Government Facility Siting is worthy of a priority ranking. I agree with this statement from the document "CAG members questioned whether ICMP would be able to make a significant difference on the wind and petcoke issues, suggesting that resources are likely to come from other areas because of the many stakeholders and interests" Petcoke seems to really but a one off issue. I think ICMP resources should not be allocated to wind energy, that money can come from either other state agencies or the energy industry

I'm not sure if I would rank something else as high priority instead, possibly Wetlands

ICMP Response – after further consideration, the strategy focused on Energy and Government Facility Siting has been removed from the document.

Waukegan Harbor Citizens' Advisory Group Submitted by: Jean B. Schreiber – "Susie" - Chair

Cell: 847-867-8067 jbschreiber@comcast.net

(as written)

This has been an interesting endeavor to thoughtfully gain constructive comments on the nine NOAA coastal enhancement areas you are working on for the Illinois 2016 – 20202 Section 309 Assessment and Strategy. After the April CAG meeting there have been a number of observations and comments forthcoming which this email hopefully will capture for you and your IDNR colleagues.

Regarding the process for gathering the initial input into the DRAFT document late last October and early November, there were a number of individuals who noted that the Coastal Advisory Group was weighted towards Cook County, and light on Lake County participants. This reflects initial comments from the first Lake Michigan Ecosystem Partnership meeting when the founding agencies/groups were clearly representatives of Cook County, and Lake County was underrepresented. This time around the commenters found the same to be true, and were *quite concerned* that Lake County again did not have the equal representation. It appeared to some to be reflected in the issue rankings.

This led to a significant question which had been raised at the time the Illinois Coastal Zone Management came into existence: What is the current status of the Lake Michigan Ecosystem Partnership? A great deal of effort went into building a strong capable Lake Michigan Ecosystem Partnership equally representative of both Cook and Lake County issues. It was noted that the LM Ecosystem Partnership has not met in a couple of years, yet was represented on The ICMP's Technical Committee. The partnership was and could continue to be collectively quite useful and more representative of the issues facing the Lake Michigan coastal system in Illinois.

ICMP Response — The makeup of the Illinois Coastal Advisory Group (CAG) is relatively equal between the two counties, however, not every representative was able to attend November 3rd CAG meeting. The Illinois CAG includes representatives from each community in the Coastal Zone, and additional county and regional entities. Key participants, such as the Lake County Forest Preserve District and the Lake County Stormwater Management Commission, provided important representation for Lake County. Several regional entities, including Alliance for the Great Lakes, Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning and Lake Michigan Ecosystem Partnership, also cover and represent Lake County interests.

Wetlands

- Observation: Lake County residents had a better understanding of the coastal wetlands than Cook County residents. The later had a better understanding of bluff erosion. For the general public, and even for those working regularly on Lake Michigan issues, there is not well founded understanding of sand dunes, their structure and behavior, and of the wetlands within them on the Lake Michigan shoreline of Illinois.
- <u>Those commenting on wetlands generally felt wetlands should have remained a stand</u> alone enhancement with a ranking of high. They strongly agreed with the TAG and the

CAG ranking of HIGH. They did understand the reasoning behind the IDNR's ranking of medium, but felt using the % of wetlands in public ownership did not properly address all of the issues and concerns over management of Illinois inter-coastal wetland communities, especially those outside of Illinois Beach State Park.

The wetlands did not meet the criteria and issues described under Coastal Hazards

ICMP Response – clarifying text related to wetlands has been added to the document. We recognize that preservation of quality of wetlands is important in the Coastal Zone, and we are committing funds from other sources (not Section 309) towards wetland protection and restoration.

Coastal Hazards

- Note that the Great Lakes has seiches, not tsunamis and this should be noted in come comment area to NOAA as they access issues on the Great Lakes. It is understood that the IDNR is using a NOAA template to address the required Enhancement Issues.
- The general public has very little real understanding of the hydrogeological effect of ravines within the Lake Michigan coastal zone, nor is there a real awareness of a pressing need to better regulate community management of ravine systems.
- Watershed management is still poorly understood by the general public in the Illinois Coastal Zone.
- Coastal Zone erosion is of concern mostly to those whose properties are immediately
 affected by dynamic interface of lake and shore. Highly urbanized communities have a
 preponderance of residents who care about the development of their own property
 without concern for the management of the coastal zone ecosystem as a whole. This
 remains a very high priority to those charged with solving the erosion problems. There
 should be equal emphasis on areas outside of State of Illinois management and the
 Waukegan River.
- Page 30: It was noted that there were 3 national disaster in the last 7 years, but only two, snow and flooding were noted.
- Definitely seen by those making comments that this received a correct ranking of HIGH.

ICMP Response – text on pg 30 has been changed.

Public Access

Page 13 – lists 0 senic vistas/overlooks open to the general public. This is incorrect as
there are a number that residents and non residents use freely. There may not be
enough, but there defintely are more than zero.

- There does not seem to be a full understanding of the sites on the north shore by the IDNR, their TAG or their CAG. This might be an area where the Lake Michigan Ecosytem Partnership might be able to quickly assist with better documentation.
- Very strong agreement that this shuold be ranked HIGH.
- Public access for passive enjoyment of the lakefront strongly stressed by many at a recent Lake County Forest Preserve openhouse relating to the Ft. Sheridan preserve.
- Agreement that more active recreational access for all ages and ADA should be created.

ICMP Response – there are no federally-designated scenic vistas, therefore we indicated that number as zero.

Marine Debris

- Illinois Clean Marina Innitiative noted by a number of reviewers that this was started well before the Illinois Coastal Zone Management program was instituted. USEPA Lake Michigan Management Plan – the Lake Michigan Forum, the Lake Michigan Technical Coordinating Council, Illinois /Indiana Sea Grant etc. Credit should be noted.
- Ranking of medium seemed to be appropriate from those who commented.
- A number of commentors familiar with the Waukegan lakefront trash management reflected a dissatisfaction with the Swimming Beach and Sea Horse Drive trash containers that are open and seldom emptied, especially from Sept. through May of the year. Waukegan Port District properties were not included in these comments.

ICMP Response –Illinois Clean Marina Initiative refers to the specific certification program that was initiated with funding received from USEPA by the Coastal Program. Text was changed to reflect previous work done by Lake Michigan stakeholders and other states to address this need.

Cumulative and Secondary Impacts

- Several commentors thought the data and numbers used in the Trends in Coastal
 Popoulation were not truly reflective of the actual statistics. They did not look at land
 reuse along the shoreline of the north shore related to population trends, and did not
 look at future potential land population loads. New development continues unabated
 and is land compaction denser.
- Skepticism about the methods of reseraching this problem were raised by the commentators.
- Some thought this should be added to the Coastal Hazard category, and defintiely ranked HIGH. This was true for both Lake and Cook County commentators.

 Also noted, that just because this is a bit more difficult to address for political reasons, it should not be thrust into the medium category. It in fact has a great impact on long term management issues of the Illinois Lake Michigan Coastal Zone currently under consideration at this time.

ICMP Response –there was no consensus from CAG or TAC to elevate this issue to high priority.

Great Lakes Resources and Energy Management

- Sand management came up with a lot of varying opinions on how it is currently being handled and how it might bebetter addressed.
- Wind management came up with a lot of varying opinions on how it is currently being handled and how it might bebetter addressed.
- Nuclear waste issues came up with concerns over long term storage.
- Coal issues came up and have been well disscussed in Lake County. The North Shore of Cook County was a bit less concerned, mostly because they no longer directly use coal in their communities from those who commented to us.
- In general, the comments reflected a much greater need to thoroughly understand all of the energy issues on the table, including fracking and tar sands by everyone.
- Birders noted very little known about the pelagic commnity about 6 8 miles off shore and is just now getting reseach attention.
- Some noted the lack of data for the nearshore aquatic coastal zone, but most were unaware of the need for more intensive research in this area.
- Where the legal limits of communities and reparian land owners end and public use of coastline begins has been an issues for at least half a century, and will continue to escalate. We heard about this in relation to public access comments, and right to build out into the lake bed by private property owners.

Aquaculture

One comment- from a Waukegan citizen who has been trying to establish a small fish farm on private property as a partial solution to food deserts. No state, regional or local guidance documents available, and no one interested in helping them. It was/is a demonstration project.

ICMP Strategies of three High Priortiy Issues

page 58 - last paragraph: Do not just list the Alliance for the Great Lakes. Institutions and ogranizations have cooperatively been working hard on the issues for some time and should be acknowledged. The Chicago Botanic Garden, Openlands, Lake Forest

Openlands, the Lake Forest Garden Club, Waukegan Park District, and the Waukegan Harbor Citizens' Advisory Group just to name a few. This is really important to build concensus as we all go forward.

- Access inventory & Needs Assessment
 - a. Make sure it is both land and water based needs access and needs assessment
 - b. Make sure Seniors and people with disdabilties are actively included
 - c. When using data bases for population do not just included children or Seniors, but inlcude all ages
 - d. When using data bases for income, include all income catagories they all use the lakefront in some manner

We may not have captured all of the comments, but certainly after presenting the general overivew of the DRAFT Section 301 Assessment and Strategy at the April Waukegan Habor CAG meeting, many people who found the 82 page document unwieldly and difficult to interpret and understand at the first look, felt more comfortable discussing the topics and sharing their comments. This has been ongoing since the April CAG meeting.

In the future the IDNR might want to consider Open House style meetings in the lake shore communities for better understanding and input into the major issues facing the long term management of Illinois' 63 miles of lakeshore.

Thank you very, very much for leaving the comment period open for longer than IDNR had originally scheduled. We actually had thoughtful comments and discussions coming in up thorugh today on your document. Good luck on your next steps, and know that there are a LOT of very interested parties trying to get a handle on and understand all of the Enhancement Issues presented.

ICMP Response –Changes were made to page 58 to reflect work of many organizations. We will use your suggestions on the access inventory and needs assessment. We understand that the long document and format of the information is challenging to digest but we are following a prescribed process. We added a section to the introduction to help clarify the context of the assessment process. Thank you for your interest and for reviewing the document and submitting your comments.